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Group Aspirations

We Focus, therefore We Excel. We are Committed to Achieve
Outstanding Returns for Employees and Shareholders.

We pledge to:

e relentlessly pursue advantages of economy of scale;

e continuously strengthen brand reputation;

e develop cutting-edge products through R & D;

e always ensure the highest product quality;

e unleash employees’ talent and potential;

e adopt the high standards in corporate social responsibility.



kbtxi|g [0S

evating Performance Repaying Society

Yip's Chem

New

| Soars Again to
ights



SERLEBNRPBEIZRBFENHESEHLE
Plants And Sales Network Of The Group’s
Core Businesses In The PRC







ERCIKBERAT —Z——FEFH




3
Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



ERCIKBERAT —ZB——FEFH




Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) (re-designated to become a non-

executive Director on 1 January 2012)

Mr. Wong Kong Chi*

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie*
Mr. Li Chak Man*

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun*

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Ng Siu Ping (re-designated to become a non-executive

Director on 1 July 2011)

* Independent non-executive Directors

Group Executive Committee

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kam Yim

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter

Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
Mr. Ip Kwan

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Company Secretary

Ms. So Sze Wan, Lisa (appointed on 1 April 2011)
Mr. Ng Siu Ping (resigned on 1 April 2011)

Solicitors

in Hong Kong:

Cheung, Tong & Rosa

Room 501, 5/F.,, Sun Hung Kai Centre
30 Harbour Road, Hong Kong

in the Cayman Islands:
Maples and Calder

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

A E]E# Corporate Information

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter (Chief Operations Officer)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer) (appointed on 1 January 2011)
Mr. Ting Hon Yam (retired on 1 January 2012)

Mr. Young Man Kim (retired on 1 January 2012)

Audit Committee

Mr. Wong Kong Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Mr. Li Chak Man

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Certified Public Accountants)
35/F., One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong
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Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China Limited

BNP Paribas

Agricultural Bank of China

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Principal Share Registrar and

Transfer Office

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House, 68 Fort Street

PO Box 705, George Town

Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen'’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

A E]E# Corporate Information

Registered Office

PO Box 309GT, Ugland House
South Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Island

Head Office and Principal Place of

Business

Yip’s Chemical Building

13 Yip Cheong Street

On Lok Tsuen, Fanling

New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2675 2288

Fax: (852) 2675 2345
Internet homepage:
http://www.yipschemical.com

Stock Code

408
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Solvents

The solvents division produces environmentally friendly industrial
organic solvents, which can be grouped into two types: (1) raw solvents,
including ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl acetate and
ethanol, which are widely used in industries such as coatings, tannery,
pharmaceuticals and adhesives; (2) mixed solvents, commonly known
as thinners, which are mostly used in the toys, electronics, printing and
furniture industries.

As the Group's largest core business, solvents are produced and sold
through a number of subsidiaries. With a production capacity of 600,000
metric tons, Yip's Chemical is currently the world’s largest producer of
acetate solvents.

The success of the solvents business is attributable to the division’s superior
corporate culture, excellent management team, direct sales network
and global strategic alliances, which collectively confer the division with
distinctive advantages over its competitors. With the development of
products such as butyl acrylate, the division will diversify itself and enter
new business areas, thereby further enhancing its competitiveness.
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BREBTIETEEFERME(—)RAKER  The coatings division is mainly involved in the production and sales of
F£2E; (Z)rhE; R(Z)ITEZ > 8 LEX (1) household and architectural paints; (2) inks; and (3) industrial paints,
HREESERN  ELEBNEZERNRES including varnishes and resins. These coatings serve an extensive range of
DA BFER M 2RMERE%R UK industres, including construction, toys, electronics, furniture, food and gift

ENRI 4T3 - packaging as well as printing.
ERRBREZH - Household and Architectural Paints —
[ RHITE |@hE Brand name: “Bauhinia”

[&Ht EAREREZRREIEKMEIEZE - “Bauhinia” household and architectural paints include water-based
MEBRHMEAREZ - EBEMELREIPES  emulsion paints, exterior paints and solvent-based paints for wood
BiwmzERE  EMEIRBARBEEZE  finishing. As one of the first brands awarded the “China Top Brand”
BRELUEERRE  ZEHAXREH - ANIEA  title, "Bauhinia” household and architectural paints are well known and
RIBE—SMETSEBRRBEAEMGEN  well received for its superior quality. As the brand will further intensify
#oRBIEFARE I RARERERRETHEE  marketing and expand its domestic sales network, “Bauhinia” household
BEHE o I EBR[LZHME BMEARSEZEEBEAR  and architectural paints are expected to see steady growth in future.
CHEZETISELELA - WEBAREKKE S  Besides, since the “Bauhinia” solvent-based paints for wood finishing are
R MBI ET - already a market leader in China, the division will focus on expanding the
water-based coatings business in future.

B - [FRH &R Inks — Brand name: “Bauhinia Variegata”
HBEBRHHBRBBOFHEBRMAREIF  The focus of the inks business is on the development of plastic printing
HEZER  BAICRAZERAHSMER o inks and paper printing inks. Currently “Bauhinia Variegata” is the
EETEY  EHERELHEEMIBIESBSLE  largest supplier of ink products in China. There are three strategically well
EEM cAEARMETEBRER W positioned manufacturing bases in Southern, Eastern and Northern China.
SREBERER  WERXEFHKE - KZH  In recent years, to meet market demands, the division has introduced
s = TERHEFKMEHRESE c BE—FH  environmentally friendly products such as aromatic-free and ketone-free
) REERE - EEMN2010FEHAMEIR  inks, soy inks, alcohol-based inks and water-based inks. In 2010, as a way
I HE TEABE - KK to provide greater momentum for the sustained growth of the business,
WA ZERIHE - BARKHMA  the division broadened the inks product portfolio by introducing a range
BERNIFEBRRIBMESE  of screen printing inks for use mainly in plastics, circuit boards and glass.
7o [FEH ] REEMA20108  “Bauhinia Variegata” was awarded the “Famous Chinese Trademark” title in
S [PEEHE] B - 2010.
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Coatings (continued)

Industrial paints -

Brand names: “Bauhinia”, “Pak Lam Choice”

“Bauhinia” industrial paints include paints for furniture, toys and electronic
appliance casings. Equipped with the division’s advanced inspection and
testing systems, “Bauhinia” industrial paints have passed stringent tests
set by many manufacturers of world-famous brands and are listed by them
as approved products.

“Pak Lam Choice” is a brand of coatings used in digital products and
electronic appliances. The product range includes UV series, PU series and
electroplating effect series. “Pak Lam Choice” is known for the superior
performance and diversified colour effects of its products and is widely
used by internationally renowned digital and electronic brands.

Brand name: “Golaxxo”

“Golaxxo” is a specialty glossy varnish for the post printing process of
printing industry. It finds application in the finishes for books, cards,
stationery, as well as gift boxes and boxes for toys. “Golaxxo” is a leading
brand of blister packing varnishes, UV varnishes and paper laminating
glues in China.

Brand name: “Da Chang”

Resins are a key ingredient in producing coatings.

“Da Chang” specialises in the production of resins for coatings. The
majority of the resins produced are sold to external customers but a
small portion is retained for internal use. “Da Chang” owes much of its
reputation in the coatings industry to its excellent quality.
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Lubricants

Brands: “Hercules” automotive and industrial lubricants,
and “Pacoil” specialty lubricants

The “"Hercules” brand of lubricants includes a comprehensive range of
automotive and industrial lubricant products, ranging from engine oil,
antifreeze, brake fluid, greases, gear oil, automatic transmission fluid,
hydraulic oil and turbine oil. “Hercules” successfully gained approval in
the National High Technology Research and Development Programme (the
“863 Programme”), which aims at developing specialised methanol fuel
engine oil.

The "Pacoil” brand of specialty lubricants serves industries such as metal
processing, plastics, automobiles, aeronautics, electronics, electrical
appliances, textiles, timber, watches and clocks as well as processing. The
lubricants division of “Yip's Pacific” is also a distributor for many leading
global specialty lubricant brands such as Castrol-Optimol, Castrol-Tribol
and Cimcool.
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Five Year Financial Summary

=2—& -—Z-TF —2-TF —IFNE —FETN\F —IRtH
—A-AE -A-AF MWA-BE MWA-HE MWA-AE MWA-AE
=$—% -—T-ZTH -T-TE —T-BE "BENF —BI\F
+=A=+-B +=B=+-RA t=A=t+-A =A=+-B =A=ft-B =A=t+-A
1.1.2011 1.1.2010 1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007
to to to to to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
(1288) (12/88) (of88) (12f88) (12/88) (12(88)
(12-month) (12-month) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
Fign Tt Fit Tt T it
348 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Taﬁgﬁ 8,275,569 7,037,970 5,654,783 5455742  5089,931 4,648,386
urnover
BRFE A A
D taxation 297,017 431,933 358,196 516,598 346,187 382,788
g
Taxation (54,850) (54,139) (41,357) (82,008) (82,145) (63,354)
AREEHF 242,167 377,794 316,839 434,590 264,042 319,434
Profit for the year
FE(EER
Attributable to
ADERR 201,344 309492 264509 378,064 224228 275,183
Owners of the Company
R 40,823 68,302 52,330 56,526 39,814 44,251

Non-controlling interests
242,167 377,794 316,839 434,590 264,042 319,434

HEBXEH Per share data
SRER GBL)

Earnings per share (HK cents)

o B Basic 36.3 56.4 48.0 70.3 419 56.7
« #3% Diluted 36.1 55.8 476 69.2 416 55.9
HRRE GEAL) - 24.0 22.0 320 250 25.0

Dividend per share (HK cents)* —_—
* CERLERTSZ——F2B8RREDFIBERSHIKRE2.081LK&4.084l
* Dividend per share in 2007 and 2011 included special dividend of HK2.0 cents per share and HK4.0 cents per share respectively.

R+ %5 L&, Financial ratios

SIS D 3R
et O Qe el Essas 3.5% 6.8% 7.3%+ 9.8% 7.0% 10.1%

Return on average shareholders’ funds 8.4% 14.3% 16.1%+ 19.3% 13.7% 21.6%

R BISAIE B B R ER LR o

* Being annualized percentage derived from the actual nine-month percentage on a pro-rata basis.

8% —ZT-ITF —E-TF —EThEF —EBEN\E
+=A=+-H +=B=+-8 =A=+-B =B=t+-A =A=+-H
31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
THT FEx FExT F&T FHET
HERAR Assets and Liabilities’ HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AERE 6,440,442 5,127,557 4,480,868 3,239,781 3,203,077
Total assets
SfAE (3,648,381) (2,534,602) (2,153,630) (1,213,905) (1,574,112)
Total liabilities e ==an ==t == rean
2,792,061 2,592,955 2,327,238 2,025,876 1,628,965
PNNG Sy
Equity attributable to owners 2,472,281 2,297,147 2,085,979 1,830,396 1,448,777
of the Company
FEZBRE 319,780 295,808 241,259 195,480 180,188
Non-controlling interests S LSS
2,792,061 2,592,955 2,327,238 2,025,876 1,628,965
FRITEEHRRES R
Net bank borrowings 40% 15% 2% N/A 10%

to shareholders’ funds
iz : BREZE-T-ZTF+-A=+-ALEFEZEEN  ULFE HEBBECLEER - AKER S ZELMBEEABR=A=+—BXB+=A=+—8
WA F R 2 RSEZBISMELLE -

Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group changed its financial year end
from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for last corresponding year are provided for comparision.

BRAT - —FEER
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1.4.2007- 1.4.2008- 1.4.2009- 1.4.2010- 1.1.2011-
31.3.2008 31.3.2009 3132010 31.12.2010 31.12.2011
L g
BB E Gaw)
Dividend per share (Hk cents)
320
25.0 25.0
220 24.0
Final Final
10.0 12.0
| |
1.4.2007- 1.4.2008- 1.4.2009- 1.4.2010- 1.1.2011-
31.3.2008 31.3.2009 3132010 31.122010 31.12.2011
= s — —
ANE R EEGRERS (T

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company (Hks'000)
2,472,281

2,297,147
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AR FRBREEEER (T
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of the Company (Hk$'000)
378,064
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31422010
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JL o
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Analysis of Turnover and Segment Results
for the Past Five Years

e

2 28 Turnover

=2——% -—E2-3£ -2-TF  ZRNE  —BR\E  _IRiR
—A—RE —H—-A% mA—AZ mE—BZ mA—BZ L =
=B——% -Z-3F C—EF-TF "T-TF "TTHE C—ITI\F
+=A=+-B t=p=+-R t=A=t-A =A=t+-B =A=+-B =A=1-A

1.1.2011 1.1.2010 1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007
to to to to to to
31.12.2011  31.12.2010  31.12.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
(12f88) (12{88) (9fE &) (12{88) (12188) (12188)
(12-montll) (12-month) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
FTHT TET TBT FiBr FBr FEx
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
97
BA 5,100,110 4,281,189 3,445,502 3,028,993 2,976,563 2,745,605
Solvents
E’H 2,821,351 2,417,540 1,947,839 2,088,019 1,852,881 1,666,336
Coatings
R 416201 353,582 283,742 292,475 257,446 248,656
Lubricants
Hfto 49,500 99,812 67,091 135,974 80,753 103,616
Others
Elmination (111,593) (114,163) (89,391) (89,719) (77,712) (115,827)
%?aﬁl 8,275,569 7,037,970 5,654,783 5,455,742 5,089,931 4,648,386
Mz : REZE-Z-ZET-_A=T-ALEEZE8EN ULEE HEZHECEEY - AEER 2 - ZELMBELBR=A=+t—A¥BTt=-A=+—8§

BEIHEF R REFR BB S -

All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group changed its financial year end
from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for last corresponding year are provided for comparision.
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7 ¥4 Segment Results

ZB——%F —E-%F —E-Ef —EENF —ZENF —ETLHF
—A—HE —HB—B% mA—RZ mA—-HZ MA—HZ mA—-HZ
S8——% —E2-Zf§ "B-ZTFE _T-TF _ITNF _IE)\F
+=A=+—H +=A=+-B t=A=t—-H =A=+-B ZA=t—-H =Z=A=+-8H
1.1.2011 1.1.2010 1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007
to to to to to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010  31.12.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008
(128R) (12188) (9f8R) (12188) (12188) (1218 8)
(1 2-month_) (12-month) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
ET FET FET FET FiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A
219,477 319,032 244,312 327,044 212,682 250,185
Solvents
/2*4 84,530 92,008 109,836 181,534 128,112 124,046
Coatings
TR 4,474 12,917 5,799 7,568 (7,284) 9,493
Lubricants
st 1,043 4,653 4979 14,039 6,101 9,461
Others
T HHEH
Elimination 3,064 (747) 4,099 (7,402) 371) (473)
#azE
Total 312,588 427,864 369,025 522,783 339,240 392,712
Mz BREE-Z-TET-AZS+-ALFEZEEN ULFE HEZBBCEER - AEER-Z-ZFEHBEERR=A=+-AXA+=A=+—8
W A F R 2 RAISEZBIEMFLLE -
Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group changed its financial year end

from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for last corresponding year are provided for comparision.
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Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects

=& Chairman
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Review

In honour of the 40th anniversary of the Group last year, a number of
celebration and commemorative activities were held. One particularly
touching event was the “reflection sharing” activity attended by some
3,000 employees or more than 60% of the entire staff of the Group. It
was in this event that the most valuable experiences in the course of the
extraordinary journey taken by the Group in the last 40 years were
distilled into three corporate core values, namely, “respect for and
cooperation with all stakeholders”, “thirst for talent” and “undivided
focus on core businesses”. In particular, “respect for and cooperation
with all stakeholders” takes primacy over everything else: from time to
time it reminds the whole staff to be humble, trustworthy and to honour
our commitments; and it also means respecting, caring and sharing with
employees. | am convinced that, as such corporate culture takes root and
flourishes in the Group, it will guide us towards a more prosperous next
40 years.

The past year was one with the worst business environment in the
last decade. As the debt crisis in Europe kept spreading and with
financial markets in turmoil, a number of countries adopted austerity
policies. In the United States, the hovering high of the unemployment
rate and the weaker-than-expected recovery of the economy brought
substantial impact on the real economies globally. Under the influence
of globalisation, the Chinese market could not stay unscathed. In the
period the central government rolled out several rounds of administrative
measures in an effort to bring down inflation and prevent the overheating
of the economy. Particularly, in the second half of the year, due to the
tightening of money supply and the influence of external factors, exports
shrank precipitously and there was no way of fighting off the doldrums
of the market. Subsequently competition among competitors became
ever more white-hot. These, together with several cycles of unusual
fluctuations in raw material prices in the period, constituted enormous
pressure on the margins of the Group. In the meanwhile, the Group had,
in order to maintain and consolidate its competitiveness and to meet
the needs of sustained business growth, front-loaded investments for
restructuring some business segments and for capacity expansion, brand
building and R&D. Under the adverse impacts of all these factors, though
the Group was able to register decent growth of 18% year on year in its
revenue, reaching HK$8,275,569,000 during the reporting period, profit
attributable to shareholders was only HK$201,344,000, decreased by
35% year on year, while net profit margin attributable to owners of the
Company recorded a historical low at 2.4%.

19
Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



20

FERE —EFERESZ Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects

EVERS)

BEEE20IENEEREERTESR
B#ZETBERMBEBIZNEL  BA
(D201 FEBNEXEREBELT S &
8,275,569,0008 T ' TERERFMFEAE L -
EETEE2013F > EFEHEEWETK
FHE1ERBINFHEE  E#MmERLE
2020 F A B EEFTHE2008 BT oM
EEL SERAEEEANERE  EREERS
EE - E2EENATREEZFTECETE
BHERF (=) EBEZBENEEWRZRLER
SEEXNHBER BHEIZ-FRESHE
BRE EREEEEIBRERWRERENSE
E2EHENRENE  ZERENESTEES
& MEHEETEHRORELRIEER - RS
BRARKPNBHEEERIRENER - At
SERGEEFISENCERTIZEEN » AR
Ry - REERE—EFEEMERA > £5KE
TR R EEBRSEREKTENWEE » B
BREERE  HRREHRBERLROES
REZER EESERNERRMREHR
BREGK12.084L > ERRESIRER EE NS
BIREEHER12.084L > 2FEH24.058(L -
EZTERARERAHRE  RRUTREDHR
2HURRE °

RAT —®-—FEEH

Review (continued)

Though the Group's results for the year of 2011 are not satisfactory,
the confidence we have in our business prospects has not shaken one
bit. This is so because, first, the Group’s turnover for the year of 2011 at
HK$8,275,569,000 is a record high. Based on such a foundation, there is
good chance that the Group can reach its mid-term target of achieving
HK$10 billion in annual turnover two years in advance in 2013. So we
have the determination to double our turnover further to HK$20 billion by
2020. In fact, for this ambitious target, we have already started making
necessary preparations in terms of capacity expansion, capital raising and
personnel planning. Second, the Group’s R&D centre that has been under
planning for quite some time has already started operation this year and
it is expected that we will see the benefits gradually within three to five
years. By that time, these R&D results, coupled with the Group’s expanding
economy of scale and the growing reputation of its brands, would provide
enormous far-reaching support towards the Group's efforts in relentlessly
optimising its earning quality and raising its profitability. That is why the
Group regards the unusual business situation of last year as temporary
and surmountable. On the other hand, while the Group abides by its long-
held principle of fiscal prudency to keep its financial situation always in
good shape, it also sticks by its promise of actively passing on value to
shareholders and providing them with stable returns. Taking all factors
into consideration, the Board recommends a final dividend of HK12.0
cents per share. Together with the interim dividend and special dividend
of HK12.0 cents per share, the total dividends for the year came to HK24.0
cents per share. The Board also recommends that, for the final dividend,
shareholders can elect to take scrip dividend in lieu of all or part of cash.
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Prospects

The overall operating environment in the current year is still not
encouraging. In Europe the debt crisis is still threatening to spread.
Recovery of the US domestic economy will take time. China as the most
powerful engine for global economic growth has to deal with structural
adjustments in switching from exports to domestic demand as a way
of maintaining sustained economic growth. Moreover, in the year it
is expected that conflicts in Sino-American trade will keep escalating.
So in all the uncertainties and challenges this year simply cannot be
underestimated. Nevertheless the Group still has absolute faith in the
Chinese Government’s macro-control ability; there will inevitably be
untold challenges in the course of switching from exports to domestic
demand, yet there will also be untold business opportunities. In this
respect the Group is well prepared — both to confront challenges and
to embrace opportunities. Also, honed by harsh environment for more
than two years, the Group’s competitiveness in various aspects has been
boosted incessantly. In particular, in dealing with unusual volatilities in raw
material prices, the Group has already implemented a number of effective
measures that should be able to minimise any adverse impact. Thus the
Group is confident in the improvement of overall operating efficiency, the
effects of which should show up significantly beginning this year and will
keep on surfacing in subsequent ones. In striving for ever better business
results and in creating values for shareholders, the Group is also dedicated
to reciprocating society and helping the underprivileged. The two goals
are to be pursued together on an ongoing basis to realize the core values
of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our employees for their efforts
and their contributions, and all our business partners for their trust and
their support.
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The Group’s New Management Structure

The Group took its first step in bolstering corporate governance in 2006.
The general direction determined at that time was to separate gradually
the functions of the Board of Directors and the management with the
view to delineate clearly the “leadership and supervision” functions of the
former from the “daily management” function of the latter. After a two-
year planning period, a three-tier governance structure was established
in 2008. Whereas the Board would be responsible for leadership and
supervision, a Board Executive Committee formed by all executive
directors would act as a bridge between the Board and the management.
It would carry out frontline work in leadership and supervision on behalf
of the Board and would also provide support to a Group Management
Committee that would be responsible for the execution of daily
management work.

After the new governance system had been implemented for three years,
it was reviewed by the Board in 2011. It was to everyone's satisfaction
that the division of labour in leadership and supervision on the one
hand and in daily management on the other had already been ingrained
as a culture and the running of the system was getting ever smoother.
During this period, effective operating and supervision systems had been
developed and a mechanism for their continuous improvement had been
devised. Furthermore, the new generation of young senior executives
who were either promoted from within or recruited from the outside
were getting more experienced. For these, the Board deemed it the right
moment to further reduce its participation in business operations and,
instead, concentrate on the long-term planning of the Group.

Since 2012, the division of labour between the Board and the
management has become ever clearer. The Board Executive Committee
has been combined with the Group Management Committee to become
the Group’s highest management body. The new management body has
been renamed Group Executive Committee and will be chaired by Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin, the Deputy Chairman of the Group.

In the latest Board, 7 of the 11 members are non-executive directors
(including myself) and four are independent non-executive directors.
The remaining four executive directors, as core members of the Group
Executive Committee, will jointly undertake the responsibility of leading
the committee. The increase in the number of non-executive directors in
the Board highlights the emphasis in and focus on the execution of the
board’s functions. | believe that the new governance structure will bring
great benefits to the long-term development of the Group.
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Retirement of Directors

Mr. Ting Hon Yam and Mr. Young Man Kim both retired as executive
directors of the Group effective 1 January 2012. Having worked for the
Group for respectively 28 years and 11 years, they have both dedicated
themselves to the development of the Group at various stages and in
various capacities. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
utmost respect and sincere gratitude for their outstanding contributions,
and would like to wish them health and happiness in their retirement.

Ip Chi Shing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Solvents

In the period under review, turnover for the solvents segment attained a
new high of HK$5,100,110,000, up 19% from the same period last year.
Nevertheless, due to a drop in gross margin, operating profit was down
31% on the year to HK$219,477,000. During the period, as a result of
the instability of the global economy and the volatility of oil prices, the
supply and demand, as well as prices of upstream raw materials fluctuated
repeatedly, thereby denting much of the gross margin of the solvents
business. That is why, despite decent increase in sales was recorded for the
whole year, operating profit was dragged down by the overall decline in
gross margin to an unsatisfactory level.

Though business environment last year was direr than expected, the
Group is still optimistic with the development of this business segment.
Raw solvents and mixed solvents achieved record sales of 548,000
metric tons last year and raw solvents accounted for 518,000 metric
tons. For raw solvents, the Group remains the world’s largest producer
of acetate solvents. As for production capacity, after expansions to the
existing production facilities were completed last July, total capacity is
now increased to 600,000 metric tons, providing necessary room for
further sales growth this year. Furthermore, in order to meet the needs
of sustained business growth in the future and strengthen the Group’
s position as the market leader in China’s solvents market, capacity
expansion plans for acetate solvents are now underway. To further expand
product portfolio of the solvents segment and leverage the synergy in
raw materials procurement, the production line for a new product, butyl
acrylate, is being built at full speed. The annual capacity of the new
product is 80,000 metric tons. It is expected that the new production line
will be on stream in October this year and will bring an additional annual

turnover of approximately HK$1 billion to the Group.
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Coatings

In the period, the turnover of the coatings business was up 17% from
the same period last year to a record high of HK$2,821,351,000, while
operating profit saw a decline of 8% from the corresponding period a year
ago to HK$84,530,000. Last year, operating environment for the coatings
business was severer than expected. As raw material costs remained high
because of inflation and as demand slowed down and market competition
turned tougher as a result of the mainland’s economic austerity measures,
overall gross margin was under pressure constantly. Faced with these
changes in business conditions, the Group has adopted timely response
measures to raise operational efficiency and competitiveness. These
measures included, among others, the consolidation of some of the
facilities of the production plants and the restructuring of the distribution
network for household paints. But the required short-term investment for
these measures has increased operation expenses, which has pulled down
the overall operating profit of the coatings business to a level below that
of the previous year, so much so that it could not grow in tandem with
sales.

It is expected that the operating environment confronting the coatings
business will still be inundated with challenges, but the Group is
nevertheless confident that the business will be able to maintain steady
growth and it will strive to optimise the earning quality of this business
segment. In fact, in the last particularly difficult year, sales growths were
registered for resins, inks, as well as industrial and household coatings as
overall sales volume grew to almost 150,000 metric tons, demonstrating
that the overall competitiveness of the coatings business can overcome
current challenges in the business environment. Looking forward, the
Group believes that, as the effects of the response measures adopted
last year emerge gradually, profit margin will turn for the better. In a bid
to further improve gross margin, the Group will continue to optimise
product formulations and speed up the vertical integration of certain
raw materials, including the resins used for producing offset printing inks
and architectural paints, which can eventually improve the gross margins
of these two products. For household paints, the consolidation of the
distribution network has progressed well. There are currently a total of
approximately 1,800 exclusive shops of Bauhinia Paints in China and the
point of sales has reached approximately 5,000. The consolidation can
enhance pricing competitiveness and gross margin as it allows Bauhinia
Paints to directly reach out to the third and fourth-tier cities in China and
reduces the number of provincial and city-level distributors. Further, to
meet the capacity demand for sustained growth, the expansion project
of the Zhongshan Inks Plant has been completed and is now under trial
production, while the new production line for offset printing inks in
Tungxiang and the first phase of the new Jinshan Plant in Shanghai are
both due for completion within this year.
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Coatings (continued)

With the revamping and consolidating of existing plants and the
completion of new production facilities, this growing business will boost
economies of scale and raise marginal effectiveness and competitiveness.
On the other hand, the Group R&D Centre in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
in Pudong, Shanghai has already come on line officially early 2012.
The completion of this Centre will in the long-term be conducive to
strengthening product R&D capability and boosting the competitive
advantages of the Group'’s coatings business. The R&D Centre will strive
to attract more technical personnel, facilitate related manufacturing-
academic-research projects, bolster external technology cooperation and
focus on the research and development of related product technologies.
It is expected that in the next three to five years research results will
start trickling in so that the Group’s coatings business will see definite
advantages in scale, brand and technology that will foster continuous
growth.

Lubricants

In the period, the turnover of the lubricants business grew 18% on
the year to a record-high HK$416,201,000 while operating profit was
HK$4,474,000. After discounting the special income from acquiring
the Zhanjiang Plant which was booked in the same period last year, the
earnings results would be more or less on a par with those for the same
period a year ago. In the period, continued growth was recorded for
the overall sales of the business. This is particularly so for automotive
lubricants and anti-freeze, which for several years in a row have registered
double-digit growth both in sales volume and sales amount. To cater to
the growing demand for anti-freeze, the building of a new production
line through conversion in the Qingpu Plant in Shanghai is already on
the drawing board and it is expected that this new line will be operative
before mid-2013. Last June, the minority interests of the specialty
lubricants business have been acquired by the Group. This acquisition will
be favourable to the consolidation of resources for the specialty lubricants
business and the automotive lubricants business, thus helping towards
enhancing the operational efficiency of the overall business in short to
medium term.

Wong Kam Yim
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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0MNFERCISABARII+EAERET  The year 2011 witnessed the 40th anniversary of founding of Yip's
“+REAF - BERENT+E  SEEA[ZX Chemical and the 20th anniversary of its listing. Looking back to the past
RE  FEULHEE ; BRMIBEA ] £EEAE 40 years, the Group understands that it has attained professionalism
DLBREAR  BEEMR AR FRFBUEET  because it has been tending to its core businesses with an undivided
BRRZERNZE BEEHEE — AH#ES  focus. It has developed and grown because of its thirst for talent. More
ERNEE  HEZSHN+EES - M+FFH  importantly, the Group has been able to prosper to this date because
FE-TAM B4  EX|FERBETEEBE  of its respect for and cooperation with all stakeholders. Throughout the
ZERARMANEEZ > MIW+E0—HB Bl years, Yip's Chemical has been blessed with the support of its friends from
B EEEBEN+FRAEFNARME D various quarters and it has been fortunate in having a large number of
outstanding and loyal colleagues. While the 40th anniversary themes of
“Respect for and Cooperation with All Stakeholders”, “Thirst for Talent”
and “Undivided Focus on Core Businesses” embody the core values that
make it possible for the Group to grow rapidly in the last 40 years, the
40th anniversary slogan “40 Years of Unwavering Commitment” signifies
the Group's persistent devotion and hard work throughout all these
decades.
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http://www.yipschemical.com/40th/

Last year, to commemorate this important occasion, the Group organised
a host of celebration activities under the 40th anniversary themes. In
the first 40th anniversary staff event, all employees of the Group and
its subsidiaries came together to share their feelings of the anniversary
themes. A countdown to the 40th anniversary date and a ceremony for
the unveiling of the 40th anniversary logo were followed by to officially
kick off the 40th anniversary celebration. The headquarters of the Group
in Hong Kong and the offices and plants of its subsidiaries in China all
underwent a makeover by using the 40th anniversary related design as
decorations so that a festive ethos filled up every corner.

In order to let various stakeholders understand more about the success
story of Yip’s Chemical and commemorate the 40th anniversary of the
Group, Yip's Chemical specially produced a commemorative book titled “40
Years of Unwavering Commitment” and a commemorative video.

The Group played host to more than 600 business magnates and investors
from Hong Kong and the mainland at a celebration cocktail in last October.
The event culminated to a climax with the moving speech delivered by
Mr. Tony Ip, Chairman of the Group. He concluded that the Group’s
emphasis on the 40th anniversary themes is the key to its success today.

All facts and titbits of the 40th anniversary have been uploaded to a
dedicated website at:
http://www.yipschemical.com/40th/
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Corporate Social Responsibility
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While continuing to develop and expand its business, the Group will at the
same time devote its utmost efforts to contribute to society by helping the
underprivileged groups. The two goals are to be pursued on an ongoing
basis. The Group treats corporate social responsibility (“CSR") as part of its
mission, and sees it as a worthy, long-term commitment. Yip's Chemical is
also committed to incorporating the concept of sustainable development
into its business operations and management processes as a way of
achieving an all-win situation and comprehensive development for the
economy, society and the environment.

Safety First

In 2011, the Group’s “Health, Safety and Environment Department”
continued to carry out safety checks on all plants with relevant employees
of the subsidiaries in tow. It offered the subsidiaries a platform for
exchanges and for learning and benchmarking best practices and
strategies in health, safety and environment (“HSE"). After the initial
checks, suggestions on improvements were offered and revisits were
made afterwards to ensure all improvement suggestions had been solidly
carried out.

In order to further enhance HSE standards in all plants, the Department
plans to carry out plant checks at the subsidiary level in 2012. On top of
the comprehensive safety checks initiated by the Group, subsidiaries are
also encouraged to carry out their own inspections and review their safety
policies on a regular basis.

To further tighten the Group’s measures in safety production and
illustrate its high priority for HSE work, a “Health, Safety and Environment
Committee” was formed on 1 January 2012. This Committee is composed
of five non-executive directors and will report to the Board regularly.
Currently it is chaired by Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, one of the independent
non-executive directors. The Committee is responsible for uplifting the
standard of the Group’s work on HSE, making sustained improvements in
HSE matters and ensuring operational health and safety for employees and
other stakeholders.
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RIBRE Environmental Protection

BRTEEBATNEEIN  FFATIRADHEIT  On top of the efforts at the Group headquarters level, all subsidiaries are
RIBRENER  LWBKEEBREHYIIRIEE  implementing environmental protection measures in earnest in a bid to
ERPTHR o reduce polluting the environment in their operations.

ZHAREZRLEETRMER=-Z——FBEWBEAE In 2011 the Bauhinia Paints plant in Qingpu, Shanghai started
EREEIE WESLEESBFEBEESUSR  implementing clean production practices which were funded by the
B o SRR A RRIEEBRET  EBT  Shanghai Government as a way of encouragement. In the production
Mk RES  RERVEBEBRUEEE(CESWEME  of oil-based coatings, Bauhinia Paints has been constantly improving
WER BEEISEZRLEE#ILEEYWEARR  its formulas to minimise the use of raw materials which contain volatile
PR o BIBE R AR BHIEEEMHA T organic compounds so that emission of these compounds into the
EEPEENEK  BR1REF  BEEEYER  atmosphere during application is reduced. Through clean production,
BERAIE RIS R SEE o Bauhinia Paints is able to reduce effectively the emission of waste water,
waste gases, noise and solid waste during production, thus reducing the
impacts of these pollutants on the environment.

EEHEMENRLBEHASET—FR = During the period under review, the Group’s inks plants
FIRIBREREERE - RN K Q == have also implemented a range of environmentally friendly
ERREEREPREMBHEHRNE '*."!:.:;: and clean production measures. These measures have
BUBHREEY - B BEEAF Srierm o G feven succeeded in reducing the release of volatile organic
RIMFHRERER - TROHELER .- = - .. compounds into the workplace from raw materials. In
ERFH > BERAREBREEREE — addition, after centralised exhaust pipes have been installed,
REBREETRE - the emission of fine dust inside the plants has been reduced.
__, 5 Thus air quality in the plants is improved and the health of
e :"_:' 4 plant employees is protected.

EERMRL  SE-EXOHWEE
ARRER » W15 E P B BT
REUTRRA - ZB——FHhA &
BHABERBROEEMBERT i
DRIEESHPEREREEE
BEREN(REZE)BERER
il FRRENRDHEEREFTEIR
BREBVENIRAREETERR
RHRE EREENERTENGH
RRGRERE -

In R&D, the Group has all along been committed to the
development of environmentally advanced products which
are certified by the Chinese Government. In September
2011, the Group's solvent products, ethyl acetate and butyl
acetate, were granted respectively the “China Green Star”
certificate by China Association of Environmental Protection
Industry. The Group's offset printing inks have also been
granted China Environmental Labelling Product Certificate
by Ministry of Environment Protection, testifying that
Chinese environmental protection criteria are fully met.
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Social Responsibility

Donation of mobile eye surgery centres is the Group’s flagship CSR
programme. Up to 31 December 2011, this programme has succeeded
in restoring vision for 9,617 needy cataract patients. All cataract patients
in Jiangsu Province and Shandong Province were offered free surgeries
in 2011. With ophthalmologists paying regular post-surgery visits to the
patients to re-examine their conditions, the effectiveness and quality of
the surgeries are greatly enhanced. In August 2011, the Group donated
the fourth mobile eye surgery centre to Inner Mongolia. This centre is
expected to be in service by the second quarter of 2012, marking the
second centre covered under the Group’s “Ten-Year Mobile Eye Surgery
Centre Donation Plan”. By 2020, there will at least be 12 mobile eye
surgery centres donated by the Group for restoring vision for poverty-
stricken cataract patients living in the hinterland in China.

In July 2011, a Corporate Volunteer Team composing of Group and
subsidiary employees was formed. These volunteers aspire to participate in
voluntary services, and they are the forerunners in bringing the concept of
CSR to the employee level.

Yip's Chemical does not settle for just being a donor of mobile eye
surgery centres, so its Corporate Volunteer Team comes forward to initiate
volunteer programmes related to the surgery centres. In September 2011,
14 members of the Team kicked off the first visitation programme in
Nanjing and Lianyungang. Their mission was to promote prevention of
blindness and visit cataract patients. As the number of mobile eye surgery
centres grows, the Corporate Volunteer Team will continue to disseminate
basic knowledge about cataract and let more people understand the
objective and significance of these centres.

Other than its flagship CSR programme, the Group has also participated
actively in a variety of charity activities including the “River Walk” charity
walk, the “Tree Planting Challenge”, the charitable cookies sale and the
“Green Festival” organised by local environmental concern group Friends
of the Earth (HK) as well as the Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon.
In 2011, employees of the Group in Hong Kong, their relatives and
friends totalling 113 persons, joined the Group’s voluntary services and
contributed 328 hours of services.
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EHEEF Corporate Social Responsibility

Economic Contribution

As at December 2011, the Group boasted 15 plants and employed close
to 5,000 employees. These employees are all offered jobs with promotion
prospects as well as training and career development opportunities.
The business of the Group spans all over China and its sustainable
development is fostering economic and social development at the localities
of operation. In 2011, the income tax payment of the Group amounted to
HK$72,669,000.
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Yip's Care Extension Foundation

“Yip's Care Extension Foundation” was founded by three founding
shareholders of the Group in May 2011. The independently-run
Foundation aims at subsidising the pursuing of better education by
children of employees who need the additional financial help. Since its
establishment, the management committee of the Foundation has gone
to various subsidiaries to disseminate details of the subsidy programme to
some 2,300 employees interested in participating. Responses have been
enthusiastic and a lot of questions have been raised. Application for the
first year sponsorships has been successfully closed and 50 applicants
have been granted subsidy. Together with four cases of abrupt changes in
financial situation, a total of HK$175,000 in subsidy has been dispensed.

In order to extend the help to more employees who have practical needs
for education subsidy, the management committee will study in earnest
the feasibility of lowering the income threshold for application and
expanding the scope of courses for subsidy within the affordability of the
Foundation. Please refer to the Foundation's website for more details,
www.yipscef.com.hk.
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Awards

—Z-—FEFEEERERYESSEES  In 2011, the Group won a number of major awards in corporate
¥EG  PEHSEEIRREEBREBBEMEAR  governance, CSR and investor relations. These awards testify
215 PREEERSESTEHERNER - & to its commitment to CSR while maintaining continuous growth in
REATE(HESEACE  HILESBHESR  its business. It is these efforts that won the Group's extensive

AHEZET  REMZES - acclaims, recognition and support from all quarters of society.
FREIWB Awarded by | 88 Awards
CEMEHE) 355 FENE 2 ZEEEARECEEREE |2 [BRERREZRD
Asiamoney Magazine FEFB] £=

Third place in the ranking in “Best for Shareholders’ Rights
and Equitable Treatment” in the eighth “Asiamoney Corporate
Governance Poll 2010” for Hong Kong

CMBEER) M FrtEIZE——FmNEEERRE]

Corporate Governance Asia Magazine "7th Corporate Governance Asia Recognition Awards 2011”

BEEBLEENRER [ZE2——FBREEELNRE —BUEXARIRE |

Hong Kong Productivity Council “2011 Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award —
Bronze — Enterprise Sector in Manufacturing Industry”

(B &) #E KHEVEF T —LEAR |IZIHELEEIRREEEES

The Asset Magazine 5 |

“Gold Award for Social Responsibility and Investor Relations”
in “The Asset Corporate Awards”

EEUK [EEEAEREERE 2011 |2 [HEREEREF 2011
Quamnet “Outstanding Investor Relations 2011” in the “Quamnet

Outstanding Enterprise Awards 2011”

EBLEREHS HEF [ RREIER ISR

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service 5 Consecutive Years Caring Company Logo

(WTO £z E ) 2010 & EZBCEGSEEHEEABEDLE ]

China WTO Tribune “2010 GoldenBee Honour Roll Listed Company Award”

FENERECEDE - PEREEEEES | 20N FELSEEESLE]

2 FEREGMELEMESMPBEIREFBE I | 2011 Good Enterprise Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility
EhE Award”

China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment,

China Foundation of Consumer Protection,

China Private Economy Research Association
and China Forum of Environmental Journalists

FEIER A HBERHECENEIFEZES 2011 BREAAREENCENSEESH]
REAHBEEARPEEER AL BERGS “2011 Corporate Social Responsibility Affair with the Most

Corporate Public Relations Committee of China | Public Influence”
International Public Relations Association,
China Public Relations Net and China
International Public Relations Association

2011 (EE) R El Dl (2011 HEIAZRER — &R |
2011 China Charity Festival (First Edition) “2011 China Charity Festival — Collective Award”
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Liquidity and Financial Resources
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The Group will continue to implement prudent financial management

policy and adapt necessary measures to maintain its gearing ratio within
acceptable level during expansion. As at 31 December 2011, the Group's
gearing ratio (measured by net bank borrowings as a percentage of equity
attributable to owners of the Company) was 40.4% (31 December 2010:
14.9%). The continued increase in gearing ratio over the past 2 years
was mainly attributable to the Group’s additional long-term bank loans
for its investments in new factories and production facilities to capture
new market and sales opportunity. The Group’s business expansion in
Eastern China also required longer credit period granted to customers
and increased receipts of banker’s acceptances (i.e. bills receivables) as
compared to the market practices in Southern China. While such practices
have helped to facilitate sales growth in new market development, the
Group has applied stringent credit control policies and systems to govern
the banker’'s acceptances issued by various financial institutions to monitor
its liquidity and manage the lengthened cash collection cycle.

As at 31 December 2011, the gross bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$2,159,433,000 (31 December 2010: HK$1,237,261,000).
Out of this amount, HK$938,600,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$945,428,000) were short-term loans and repayable within one year.
Such loans were denominated in three currencies, namely HK$617,751,000
in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$315,925,000 in US Dollar and HK$4,924,000
in Renminbi (31 December 2010: HK$616,226,000 in Hong Kong Dollar,
HK$315,828,000 in US Dollar and HK$13,374,000 in Renminbi). Long-
term loans repayable after one year amounted to HK$1,220,833,000
(31 December 2010: HK$291,833,000) and they were all denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar. Both short-term and long-term loans carried
interests at floating or fixed rates. As at 31 December 2011, the short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash of the Group amounted
to HK$1,161,489,000 (31 December 2010: HK$895,491,000), resulting
in net bank borrowings of HK$997,944,000 (31 December 2010:
HK$341,770,000).
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As at 31 December 2011, a total of 12 banks in Hong Kong, Macau and
PRC granted banking facilities totaling HK$3,991,731,000 (31 December
2010: HK$2,819,013,000) to the Group and provided sufficient funds to
meet its present working capital and expansion. 78%, 10% and 12% of
these banking facilities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi
and US Dollar respectively. During this year, the Group obtained 5-year
bilateral long-term loans of HK$1,150,000,000 from several banks at
competitive interest rates to support for the Group’s expected growth and
development in capital expenditure and working capital requirement. One
more 5-year bilateral loan of HK$350,000,000 was subsequently signed in
early 2012, resulting in total 5-year long-term loans of HK$1.5 billion.

Since some of the borrowings of the Group carry interests at floating rate,
our funding costs are subject to interest rate fluctuation. While the Group
arranges most of its Hong Kong Dollar bank loans in Hong Kong and
converts to Renminbi for its China operations to enjoy the relatively low
borrowing rate as well as the benefit of potential upward appreciation of
Renminbi, the deteriorating debt crisis in Europe and tight money supply
in Mainland have caused three months or shorter Hong Kong Dollar inter-
bank interest rate and local borrowing costs to rise as compared to last
year. In view of the increased long-term bank loans and the fluctuation
of interest rate, the Group used interest rate swaps to hedge against
interest rate fluctuation of certain bank loans according to the currency,
amount and duration of the loans. Besides, the Group is exposed to
Renminbi exchange rate risk as the Group’s assets are mainly located on
the mainland China and most of its income is generated in Renminbi.
It is expected that economic development in China will remain strong
and Renminbi will appreciate at a steady pace. Thus, the management
considers that no hedging measure against Renminbi exchange rate
exposure is necessary at this stage but will closely monitor its fluctuations.
The Group will strike a balance between lowering borrowing cost and
minimizing currency exposure by structuring an optimal combination of
Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar or Renminbi bank loans.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2011, the Group has a total number of 4,875
employees. 128 employees are from Hong Kong and Macau and 4,747
employees are from different provinces in China.

The Group places great emphasis on the management and development of
human capital. The employees are encouraged to strive for improvement
through internal and external training program, on-the-job training and
participation in the Group's educational subsidies, allowing for self-
development in knowledge and skills and to maximize their potential
in their work. We offer excellent platform for development of highly
committed and capable employees, regardless of their background,
geographical region or educational levels. Through versatile experience in
challenging roles, the current leadership of the Group has come through
the ranks to advance to positions of management. Besides the focus of
developing employees internally, the Group seeks to attract talent from
outside and also recruit top graduates from the best tertiary institutions
in Hong Kong, in the Mainland China, and abroad and provide them
with training and development opportunities. The Management Trainee
Program has been implemented for many years. Management trainees
have demonstrated excellence and some of the former trainees have
already advanced to positions of leadership within the Group, either
as a General Manager of a subsidiary company or Head of functional
department.

The Group offers a challenging work environment, sets up different
programs to motivate employees to strive for improvement and to upgrade
their skills in order to sustain the development of business. From time to
time, the Group will make reference to market trends in remuneration
policy, providing reasonable and competitive compensation and benefits.
This includes basic salary and performance-based bonus to attract and
retain talents.
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BEFREE
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Mr. Wong Kam Yim

Non-executive Chairman

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 64, is the co-founder and the chairman of the
Group. Mr. Ip was re-designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2012. Mr. Ip has 40 years
of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical products.
He is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, deputy chairman of the Group and
executive director of the Company and the father of Mr. Ip Kwan, a member
of the Group Executive Committee. In 2006, Mr. Ip established “Ip Chi Shing
Charitable Foundation Limited” with the objectives of fostering education in
China and providing care for the underprivileged groups in Hong Kong.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 53, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip is the
deputy chairman of the Group and an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yip was appointed as the chairman of the Group Executive Committee
on 1 January 2012. Mr. Yip has over 30 years of experience in the
manufacture of and trading in petrochemical products. He is the brother of
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, chairman of the Group and non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, aged 51, joined the Group in 1996 and has been an
executive director of the Company since 2002. He is the chief executive
officer of the Group, and was appointed as a member of the Group
Executive Committee on 1 January 2012. Mr. Wong graduated from The
University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor Degree in
Business Studies and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration
from The University of Wales in the United Kingdom. He has over 20 years
of experience in marketing and management.
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ZERITHAER Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles

TERTE
Mr. Ting Hon Yam

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter, aged 54, joined the Group in 2004 and has been
an executive director of the Company and the chief operations officer of
the Group since 2008. Mr. Li was appointed as a member of the Group
Executive Committee on 1 January 2012. He obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Mechanical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong and a
Master Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Li has worked in a multi-national petrochemical company
for over 20 years and has extensive experience in engineering, corporate
planning, marketing and operations.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 45, joined the Group as the chief financial officer
in 2010. Mr. Ho was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 1 January 2011 and a member of the Group Executive Committee on
1 January 2012. Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in
Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA
with The China Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously,
Mr. Ho had worked for several listed companies in Hong Kong as their
chief financial officer, executive director and company secretary. He is a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance,
taxation and company secretarial work.

Mr. Ting Hon Yam, aged 58, joined the Group in 1983 and has been an
executive director of the Company since 1994. Mr. Ting is responsible for
the overall management of the Group’s business development in China.
Mr. Ting has over 30 years of experience in the petrochemical industry.
Mr. Ting retired from the office as an executive director of the Company
on 1 January 2012. He was appointed as the Group'’s Senior Consultant to
continue to provide professional advice on affairs of the Group.
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Mr. Tong Wui Tung Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Young Man Kim, aged 64, has been an executive director of the
Company since 2002 and is also the head of corporate communications
department of the Group. Mr. Young obtained a Master degree in
Chemistry from The University of California, Berkeley and a MBA from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Young has extensive experience in
the petrochemical industry, and was the Director for Hong Kong/Macau
for Shell Hong Kong Limited from 1993 to 2000. He is also a member of
the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of
the Marketing Management Committee of the Hong Kong Management
Association, and the chairperson of Friends of the Earth (Charity) Limited.
He retired from the office as an executiven director of the Company on
1 January 2012.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 62, was elected as an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 1993 and was re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of
the law firm, Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, legal advisers of the Group on
Hong Kong Law which receives usual professional fees in connection with
services rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent non-executive
director of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 53, joined the Group in 1991 and was appointed as
an executive director of the Company since 1992. Mr. Ng retired on 1 July
2011 and was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University). He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Ng does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong retired in 1993 after working in the merchant banking industry
for over 10 years. Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie, aged 66, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Au-Yeung graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1974. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Au-Yeung has extensive experience in management, having
held senior executive appointments in the tertiary education field and the
service industry for over 30 years. He serves on the council of a charitable
organization which raises funds and advocates for the well-being of children.
He is also the Honorary Secretary of a non-government organisation. Mr.
Au-Yeung does not hold any directorship in other listed companies.

Mr. Li Chak Man, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Li obtained a Master Degree in
Statistics from Texas A&M University. Mr. Li retired in 2004 after having
worked in the petrochemical industry for over 25 years, accumulating
extensive experience in logistics, procurement, management, personnel
and administration. He was a representative to the Association of
International Chemical Manufacturers in the 90's to promote safety
distribution of hazardous chemicals. Mr. Li does not hold any directorship
in other listed companies.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
and began his career at Shell Chemicals. Mr. Ku has extensive managerial
experience in the oil & petrochemical industries in the Greater China region.
He was a Director of Shell Hong Kong Limited, a Board Director of the
Business Environment Council and the Chairman of Tianjin International
Petroleum Storage and Transportation Company Limited. Mr. Ku does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies.

Management Executives

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 47, joined the Group in 1987 and served at
various subsidiaries or departments of the Group. He is currently managing
the businesses of the Hang Cheung group and the Bauhinia Variegata Inks
group. Mr. Kwong was appointed as a member of the Group Executive
Committee on 1 January 2012. Mr. Kwong obtained a Master Degree in
Business Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong, and has
over 20 years of experience in the field of marketing and management of
petrochemical industry.

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 29, has been the general manager of the Hong Kong
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China) Company Limited (“Bauhinia
Paints”), a subsidiary of the Group, since 1 January 2011. Mr. Ip was
appointed as a member of the Group Executive Committee on 1 January
2012. Mr. Ip joined the Group as an assistant to director of the Group in
2007 and subsequently served as the marketing director of Bauhinia Paints.
He is the son of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the non-executive chairman of the Group.
He graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Government and Economics. Before joining the Group, he had
worked in the investment bank industry for 3 years.
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Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 48, joined the Group in 2010 as the head of
Group Human Resources. Mr. Fung was appointed as a member of the Group
Executive Committee on 1 January 2012. He obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Science (Economics) from The University of London, a Master Degree in
Business Administration from The University of Warwick and a Diploma in
Training Management jointly conferred by The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and The Institute of Personnel and Development, United Kingdom.
Mr. Fung has extensive experience in different human resources areas including
organizational development, management development, talent management
and employee relations. He worked in a number of multi-national companies
from insurance, petrochemical and pharmaceutical industries. Before he joined
the Group, he was the Group HR Director of a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Leung Wing Ching, Isaac, aged 44, is the financial controller of the
Group. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from
The City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1996 and
has 20 years of experience in the field of auditing, finance and management.

Ms. So Sze Wan, Lisa, aged 36, joined the Group as the General Counsel
in May 2010 and was appointed as the company secretary on 1 April 2011.
Ms. So obtained a Bachelor Degree in Law form The Hong Kong
University and a Master Degree in Law from King's College London.
Ms. So is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. Before she joined the Group,
she had worked in international law firms and has over 10 years of legal
experience.
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Management Executives (Continued)

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 50, an experienced engineer, joined the Group
in 1993 and has been the managing director of the Jiangmen Handsome
Chemical Development Limited since 2005. He graduated from The
South China University of Technology in 1983. Mr. Zhao has over 20 years
of experience in the chemical industry and has extensive experience in
management.

Mr. Wong Man Chun, aged 43, was appointed as the managing director
of the “Pacific Oil & Chemical Company Limited” (POC) in 2005. POC has
been a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since 2011. Mr. Wong is
responsible for POC's business development and management work, and
has over 20 years experience in the special lubricants industry.

Mr. Huang Guang De, aged 47, joined the Group in 1994, has been the
general manager of Dachang Polymers (Huizhou) Ltd. since 2006.
Mr. Huang obtained the Bachelor Degree in Chemistry from Zheng Zhou
University, a Certificate of Senior Management Consultant from American
International Training Association and has completed a course in business
administration and a course in project management at Tsing Hua University.
Mr. Huang is a patent agent authorized by the State Intellectual Property
Office of the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Safety
Production Expert’s Group of Huizhou City. He has worked in government
departments, research institutes and chemical factories with extensive
experience in management.
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Management Executives (continued)

Ms. Yau Ching Man, aged 29, joined the Group as the executive
management trainee in 2005 and has been the general manager of the
Best Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
since 2009. Ms. Yau is responsible for the Best Lubricant Group's business
development and management work. Ms. Yau obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Computer Engineering from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhang Xin Hong, aged 45, joined the Group in 1993 and has been
appointed as the general manager of Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, since 1 January 2012. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Lanzhou University with a major in Chemistry in 1990, and has about
20 years management experience in the petrochemical industry.

Mr. Feng Shun Quan, aged 40, started his career in ink industry in 1993,
joined the Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, in 2000 and was responsible for sales and management. He was
appointed as the general manager of the Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group)
Limited on 1 July 2011. Mr. Feng obtained a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration from Zhong Shan University of Guangzhou. Mr. Feng has
nearly 20 years of experience in the fields of marketing and management
of ink industry.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in solvents, coatings and
lubricants. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 72 and note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively. An interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per share and
a special dividend of HK4.0 cents per share were paid to the shareholders
during the year. The Directors propose a final dividend of HK12.0 cents per
share, with an option to receive shares of the Company, totalling not less
than HK$66,000,000 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members at the close of business on 30 May 2012 and the retention of
the remaining profit in reserves.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 75 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, special reserve and retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can be
distributed out of the share premium and retained profits of the Company,
which amounted to HK$742,042,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$760,497,000).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors and Service Contracts
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Chairman

(re-designated to become a non-executive Director on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Deputy Chairman

Mr. Wong Kam Yim

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter

Mr. Ho Sai Hou
(appointed on 1 January 2011)

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

(re-designated to become a non-executive Director on 1 July 2011)

Mr. Ting Hon Yam
(retired on 1 January 2012)

Mr. Young Man Kim
(retired on 1 January 2012)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Chairman

(re-designated to become a non-executive Director on 1 January 2012)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung
Mr. Ng Siu Ping

(re-designated to become a non-executive Director on 1 July 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie

Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
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Directors and Service Contracts (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, being an executive Director, and Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Tong
Wui Tung and Mr. Ng Siu Ping, being non-executive Directors, will retire by
rotation at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM") and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the AGM. Further, the term of appointment of
Mr. Wong Kong Chi, Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie and Mr. Ku Yuen
Fun, all of them are independent non-executive Directors, will expire at the
AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at
the AGM. All remaining Directors will continue in office. The non-executive
and independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The fees of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors are
determined by the Board.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the Directors and their respective
associates in the shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required (a) to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have taken under such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the
register to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows :
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EERBESTHAENESZ®E Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and

wmRRE @) Short Positions in Securities (continued)
He Long positions
Y|
BRIRE
2B
Percentage of
the issued
RS Rk NRER share capital
Personal Family Corporate Yy of the
£33 Name of Director interests interests interests Total Company
AL Mr. Ip Chi Shing 166,343,932 3,758,000 (a) 14,000,000 (b) 184,101,932 33.16%
Bregs Mr. Yip Tz Hin 35,200,000 20,000,000 (c) - 55,200,000 9.94%
BoERE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 708,000 - - 708,000 0.13%
ZRREE Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter - - - - -
AtZEE Mr. Ho Sai Hou - - - - -
TEREE Mr. Ting Hon Yam 400,000 - - 400,000 0.07%
BREEE Mr. Young Man Kim 2,502,000 - - 2,502,000 0.45%
EERLE Mr. Tong Wi Tung - 700,000 (d) - 700,000 0.13%
RBYRE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,932,000 50,000 (e) - 2,982,000 0.54%
EEEAAE Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 () - 100,000 0.02%
BREHLE Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie - - - - -
ZEREL Mr. Li Chak Man - 150,000 (q) - 150,000 0.03%
HEFAE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 (h) - 34,680 0.01%
BT - Notes:

(a) TFEUZERMHED - 1,758,000MHELSMKEEEE (@) Outof these shares, 1,758,000 shares are jointly held with Madam Liang Bih Yu,

FREHLZ T HEIFAE ~ 2,000,000RBBHEEF the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing and 2,000,000 shares are held by his wife.
BE-

(b) WEROKIIH—BEEEREZEESERLTZ (b)  These shares are held respectively by Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation
ZZE44(10,000,000R) M —REEKBESEHFE Limited, a charitable organisation (10,000,000 shares) and Yip's Care Extension
+BMRDE ZBRAE(4,000,0008%) FriFE - & Foundation Limited, a limited company, (4,000,000 shares). Mr. Ip Chi Shing
REREEREEESHERAANERESLEE controls 50% (together with his wife control 100%) and 60% (together with
HEARATNBRRAS D IEES0% (HEE his younger sister and brother control 100%) of the voting power at the
FHE100%) %60% (BBEBHRIEE100%) 2R general meetings of Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited and Yip's Care
ZfE QR ABEEEZWMBEATEERERG Extension Foundation Limited. He is therefore deemed to be interested in these
P shares held by these two corporations.

(0 HEROBEBEFHFALEZESFEERELTE (0 These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of Mr. Yip Tsz
Bo Hin.

(d) WHEBROGHBERLEZZFIABLLEIES - (d)  These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong Wui
Tung.

(e) WHERMHRBILEZETFRENLLIES - (e)  These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng Siu Ping.
f) HERGHEEZLEZSFENELLIREE - (f)  These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong Kong Chi.

(9 WERMEFEREEZEITEHFELTHERT (g)  These shares are jointly held with Madam Cheng Yee Ha, the wife of Mr. Li Chak
B Man.

(hy HERPBETEZLECESFHYSELLIFE- (h)  These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen Fun.

49
Chemical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



50

#FESIREZE Directors’ Report

BEENBRETHRAERRF 2E
BmRARE @

BERARRABRESNESHAEBREZF
RERT — 6l BBARAE -

BEEHAE EFHAERESREEZTRE
BZLERFAARTDZMBLARAERIES (KE)
BERABDZERFBIELER IR -

BEXFFBEERESULRDATAREMBATZ
RABOBEFEMBLARAETREARGI > R=
Z——F+ZA=+—H0 &EE BSTBA
EHHBBA TR ENAATREEMEE D
AREBEFRHEGRS) 2B HPEHETAERY

NP
KA o

B

REZZBZZFEAA=H  AARBREX RS
EHRUBTEEZHR  FAR=ZE—ZFAh
A-HEHBRETBI(RER) - REF
B2 B ENGE M BIREME30 -

FR - RERAQAREFEICRTFETESRE
SBREZEEHNT

RELIEMERAT —B——FEEH

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities (continued)

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the Company’s
existing share option scheme are shown in the next section headed “Share
Options”.

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang Bih Yu, the
wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting deferred share of Yip's H.C.
(Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries
held by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, as at 31
December 2011, none of the Directors, chief executive nor their associates
held any interests or short positions in the securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

Share Options

On 3 September 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
"Existing Scheme”) which will expire on 2 September 2012 in order to
comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the Existing Scheme are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, movements in the number of options which have been
granted to certain Directors and employees under the Company’s Existing
Scheme are as follows :
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,E\%Hi*g(ig) Share Optlons (Continued)
Number of share options
R=B——§ R-Z——%
—-A—H FRE +:HE+:EI
~ i RATEE iy e RATHE
e Outstanding Exercised Outstanding
Rt A5 Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price 1.1.2011 the year 31.12.2011
BT
HK$
BE
Directors
FeELE “ZEMERA+EA
Mr. Wong Kam Yim 17 May 2004 1.590 300,000 - 300,000
“EERETAZTHA
24 October 2005 2.004 200,000 - 200,000
“ZTLFMA=H
3 A£ri| 2007 4.050 200,000 - 200,000
“EE\F+A=1+-H
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - 100,000
“EZNETARA
5 October 2009 4536 200,000 - 200,000
ZEREE —EENFERATLA
Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter 17 May 2004 1.590 100,000 - 100,000
“EERE+AZTHA
24 Qctober 2005 2.004 200,000 - 200,000
“ZZLFMAZA
3 April 2007 4,050 200,000 - 200,000
“E2E\F+A=t-H
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - 100,000
“2ENE+ARA
5 October 2009 4,536 200,000 - 200,000
TEREE “ZZ\F+A=1+-H
Mr. Ting Hon Yam 31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - 100,000
“EZNETARA
5 October 2009 4536 200,000 - 200,000
REBTEE “ZEMERATLEA
Mr. Ng Siu Ping 17 May 2004 1.590 300,000 300,000 -
“EERE+A-TMOA
24 QOctober 2005 2.004 200,000 200,000 -
“ZZLFMAZA
3 April 2007 4,050 200,000 200,000 -
“E2E\F+A=t-H
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 100,000 -
“2ENE+ARA
5 October 2009 4,536 200,000 200,000 -
3,100,000 1,000,000 2,100,000
BT —ZERFTA-THEA
Employees 24 October 2005 2.004 306,000 30,000 276,000
—EZt+FMA=A
3 A£ril 2007 4,050 962,000 408,000 554,000
—ZE\F+A=1-8
31 October 2008 1.950 590,000 140,000 450,000
—ZTHETAERA
5 October 2009 4536 1,924,000 536,000 1,388,000
3,782,000 1,114,000 2,668,000
6,882,000 2,114,000 4,768,000

FRAVERTFTESNEEERE - ERNFRET
FoERE  HBREERETERRHZAINED
BRAD INFETF IR TEAI. 18658 T ©

During the year, no option was granted to Directors or employees. In respect
of the options exercised during the year, weighted average closing price
of the shares of the Company immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised was HK$9.186.
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Share Options (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed above)
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company under Section 336 of the SFO :

e Long positions
R=Z——F
+=—A=+—H
L N
2RITRAE
ZBED
Percentage
of the issued
FERREE FrERHEE share capital
Name of 1 Number of of the Company
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held asat31.12.2011
ERELZ L BREBA
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner 47,592,000 8.57%
FMR LLC BELE (M)
Investment Manager (Note 1) 33,110,000 5.96%
Prudential plc SEEEEA RS (MEE2)
Interest of Controlled
Corporation (Note 2) 27,800,000 5.01%

FfEE

1. RERSREPEHRH R=FB——F+=ZA=+
— B FMC LLC#48 % %8 533,110,0008% 2< 22 &) i
13z #E % » M H #Fidelity Management & Research
Company# 531,710,00088 - Fidelity Management
Trust CompanyE2 Pyramis Global Advisors LLC &l
#41,400,0008% °

2. REFHFRPEHEH R=F——F+=H=+
— B Prudential plc#® 1% % # 5527,800,0008% 4%
AT R 2R o ZER D HAPrudential plc 12
E B A BIM&G Investment Management Limited
A -

Notes:

1. Under SFO, as at 31 December 2011, FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in
33,110,000 shares of the Company, of which 31,710,000 shares were held by
Fidelity Management & Research Company and 1,400,000 shares were held by
Fidelity Management Trust Company and Pyramis Global Advisors LLC.

2. Under SFO, as at 31 December 2011 Prudential plc was deemed to be interested
in 27,800,000 shares of the Company. Such shares were held by M&G
Investment Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Prudential plc.
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Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other than
the interests disclosed above in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2011, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

Corporate Governance

Report on the Company’s corporate governance are set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 55 to 69.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2011 and at the date of this report, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares capital as
required under the Listing Rules.

Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group made charitable and
other donations amounting to HK$3,642,274.

53
hemical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



54

HEEEIREZE Directors’ Report

HEXZRES2ANER

EEHE-Z——F+=-A=+—HLEEER &K
£ B85 513 14960,00058 7T K 600,0005& T 2 F &
FAREREERAFAREEREERAT  £5
BEEREEREFHEEDFINEZRMBEATIEE

B o

MR EFrRBES - RAFEFLRHIFREM
BEX A FEALAREETAHBLTEHSH
AARESRERRREGEAEESEEERS
ZEREH -

BrEERE

ARTZATARSRANRMEHRS AT LM
FEBEABERZ KL - REAADANRE
BRRBEEBEZFBERA AR ETR 22
e

M

BHENZREY « BERSSHMTAE AR
BB ZRBRERART ZBRRBFARE LR

2o

RESEEG
RER
*E

F8 "T—_F=A=-+tH

ERCIKBEARLE —T——FEFH

Connected Transactions and Directors’

Interests in Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group paid rent of
HK$960,000 and HK$600,000 to Goldex Investments Limited and Galsheer
Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin, the Directors, have beneficial interests respectively.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
a controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012



EREIBWS

Corporate Governance Report

=R Statement of Compliance

RATFNEFEKEZLEER  UEFKE  The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
HiES  EE - HES  mEBMHMNBREMAE  governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives of maximizing values for
ZEEERBAERREMMNERMAEZ ©  itsemployees, customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders, and
RATEBEZZE——F+ZHA=+—HLEFE  safeguarding the interests of them. The Company has complied with all code
WHEBFHIAES EWRAT ETmHRAIDZ  provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) of
[EERERTA MR FR DRMEFAEAl  the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

B3 BT X EBETES B HZEESFAII—  “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 except for
BIMERERETREASABENETATESE  an incdent of the deviation from Code provision A.5.4 in relation to the
HEITEF RS WRESFAI((EEFR BRI o compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as mentioned in the paragraph headed
“Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors” below.
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EERES

Corporate Governance Structure
EZ2-——5+=ZHA=t+—H

Up to 31 December 2011

[ES

Shareholders

Q

)

S EFE - AERE
Board of Directors Company Secretary

i

vy =
EKEEZER FTHEES
EREEs (Ta%e]) Remuneration
Audit Committee Board Executive Committee
Committee ("BEC")

% ® (rgze])
External Auditors Group Management
Committee ("GMC")

AEI S

Internal Auditors

LR
® Operations of
the Group
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The Board

The Board's principal duties are setting policies, monitoring the execution
of such policies, and providing supervision and assistance to the overall
management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

As of 31 December 2011, the Board comprised a total of thirteen Directors,
including seven executive, two non-executive and four independent non-
executive Directors. On 1 January 2011,
officer of the Company, was appointed as an executive Director. On 1 July

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, chief financial

2011, Mr. Ng Siu Ping retired as an executive Director and was re-designated
as a non-executive Director. All non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years
before 2011 and from 2011 onward three years, subject to re-election.

There have been changes to the members of the Board on 1 January 2012
as Mr. Ting Hon Yam and Mr. Young Man Kim retired from the offices
of executive Directors and Mr. Ting was appointed as the Group’s senior
consultant to continue to provide professional advice on affairs of the Group.
Meanwhile, Mr. Ip Chi Shing was re-designated as a non-executive Director
and remained as the chairman of the Board. The Board is therefore now
made up of eleven Directors, including four executive, three non-executive
and four independent non-executive Directors. The list of Directors with
their roles and functions is available on the Company’s website and Stock
Exchange’s website.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of Directors’ and
Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 38 to 45. Mr. Ip Chi Shing is the
brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
otherwise related to each other.

The Company has also received annual confirmations from all four
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their independence as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. One of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and related financial management experience.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to ensure that
it possesses the necessary skills, experience and diversity to discharge its
responsibilities effectively. Currently, the Board assumes the responsibilities
of nomination and appointment of new Directors.

57
emical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



TEERIRSE Corporate Governance Report

EE®)

EESENF

EBEZ——S+ZA=+-HLEE ES
SEATTRESEEARAMER - 8 F
EREHERZHEREIRINT ¢

Th e Boa rd (Continued)

Operation of the Board

During the year ended 31 December 2011, twenty *regular and other
Board meetings were held by the Board. The attendance of each Director
at these meetings is shown in the table below :

HITES: Executive Directors :
EZgEReR EEgHMWERE
HE= HE=
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
BEREE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 4/4 14/16
(R==—=5—HF—H (re-designated as a non-executive
BERFMTES) Director on 1 January 2012)
BEPBELE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 3/4 11/16
BREEE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 4/4 11/16
FEREE Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter 4/4 16/16
At = k% Mr. Ho Sai Hou 4/4 16/16
TERESE Mr. Ting Hon Yam 3/4 5/16
(R=Z—=—F—AF—RH%IK) (retired on 1 January 2012)
BRELE Mr. Young Man Kim 4/4 9/16
(RZZT——F—F—RH&%K) (retired on 1 January 2012)
BYFHITES ! Independent Non-executive Directors :
EZgEReR EEgHMEE
HE= HE=
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
BEELSLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4 3/16
EEEHEE Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 4/4 2/16
FEREE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4 3/16
HESRE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 3/4 2/16
FEHITES ! Non-executive Directors :
ESEERER ETSHMWER
HER HEE
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
BEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4 2/16
RBLRE Mr. Ng Siu Ping a/4 916

(R=Z——FtA—-HAEE)

(re-designated on 1 July 2011)
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Th e Boa rd (Continued)

Operation of the Board (Continued)

* Four Regular Board meetings were held during the year which involve the
active participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communications, by all the attending Directors. Besides the Regular Board
meetings, Other Board meetings were convened from time to time during the
year to approve routine business or discuss matters that require the Board’s
timely attention.

The Company has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.
New Directors are offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
upon appointment.

The role of Company Secretary ensures that the Directors have ready access
to all necessary information and that all Board procedures are followed. He/
She is also responsible for offering opportunities of continuing professional
development to all Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to help ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was the Company Secretary of the Company
for the period between 1 January to 31 March 2011. Ms. So Sze Wan,
Lisa was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 1 April
2011.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement insurance
coverage has also been arranged.
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The Board (Continued)

Delegation by the Board

The Board, as the highest governing body, is responsible for leading and controlling the businesses of the Group. The Executive
Committee of the Board is responsible for setting long term strategy and monitoring its subsequent implementation. The Board
has delegated its principal executive responsibilities to the Group Management Committee.

THE BOARD

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained and is subject to regular review. The more important matters include:

o setting of long term objectives and strategies 3 declaring and recommending the payment of dividends
o approving preliminary announcements of results o appointing new directors
3 approving annual budgets 3 establishing Board committees
o approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions o reviewing and monitoring of internal control and
and disposals risk management
o establishing risk management policies o approving major policies and guidelines

o approving connected transactions

BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (“BEC")

BEC members

. Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) . Mr. Wong Kam Yim (the Chief Executive Officer,” CEO")*
. Mr. Yip Tsz Hin . Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter (the Chief Operations Officer,” COO")*
. Mr. Ng Siu Ping (retired on 1 July 2011) . Mr. Ho Sai Hou (the Chief Financial Officer, “ CFO")*

. Mr. Ting Hon Yam . Y

R Core management team (“CMT")

Mr. Young Man Kim

BEC comprised all executive Directors, three of whom are also members of CMT. Each of the CMT members has clearly defined
responsibilities and accountability and they act as a bridge between BEC and the Group Management Committee. Chairman of
the Board, who also acts as chairman of BEC, is responsible for leading and ensuring the proper functioning of the Board and
BEC, and has separate and distinct role against that of the CEO.

Duties and responsibilities

Since the BEC members have in-depth knowledge about the business operations of the Group, BEC works and makes decisions
at the frontline and performs the duties on behalf of the Board. The Board specified some of the matters reserved for the
Board and delegated BEC the power to decide on such matters with the same power as that of the Board. These matters are
laid down in the terms of reference of BEC and the principal items include: setting and approving Group policy and strategic
plan, monitoring the implementation of the Group’s policy and strategic plan, approving important matters of the Group and
controlling the management and operations of the Group.

GROUP MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (“GMC")

GMC members

Ex officio members: CMT Appointed members:

o Mr. Wong Kam Yim (the CEO) . Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

o Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter (the COO) . Mr. Ip Kwan

® M Ho Sai Hou (the CFO, appointed on 1 January 2011) e Mr Fung Ping Kwong (appointed on 1 January 2011)
L]

Mr. Ng Siu Ping (retired on 1 January 2011)

Duties and responsibilities

o The GMC operates under a clearly defined set of Terms of Reference and normally meets on a monthly basis.

o Other than the matters reserved for the Board, GMC has the power to manage all the business operations of the Group, the
major items being: assisting the Board in setting policy and strategy, implementing the policy and strategic plan set by the

Board, monitoring and supervising the business of the sub-groups, monitoring and supervising the Group support functions
or corporate services and co-ordinating the operations of the sub-groups in order to achieve best returns for the Group.
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The Board (Continued)

Delegation by the Board (Continued)

As more fully explained in the section headed “The Group’s New
Management Structure” in the Chairman’s Statement, a new committee,
namely Group Executive Committee, has been established with effect
from 1 January 2012 to replace the Board Executive Committee and Group
Management Committee. This structural change is an extension of a similar
initiative in 2008. Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, deputy chairman of the Board, was
appointed as chairman of the Group Executive Committee. Within the new
structure, the Board of Directors comprises 11 members, including seven
non-executive Directors and four executive Directors. The new structure will
enable the Board of Directors to focus on its leadership, long term planning
and supervision duties, as more specifically set out in the list of matters
reserved for the Board. The Group Executive Committee is delegated with
broad management responsibilities including, but not limited to, formulating
and implementing policies business strategies, as well as supervising the
performance of the Group’s different business segments.

The structural change not only simplifies the management structure of
the Group, but also speeds up decision making process, thus enabling
the Group to swiftly respond to market demands and changes, and well
prepare itself for enormous business opportunities and challenges in the
ever-changing market.
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Remuneration Committee and Remuneration
of Directors and Senior Management

The Remuneration Committee was formed in June 2005. It currently consists
of three non-executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie. Mr. Ng Siu Ping
and Mr. Ip Chi Shing were appointed as members of the Remuneration
Committee on 1 July 2011 and 1 January 2012 respectively. Major roles and
functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy

o making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior management

o determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on
the Company’s website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Remuneration Committee
held three formal meetings and the attendance of each member is shown
in the table below :

HER
RE Member Attendance
BSERBEE(ER) Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie (Chairman) 3/3
BEERE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 3/3
TERLE Mr. Li Chak Man 3/3
BEEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 2/3
BRI EE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 3/3
RIBEEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2/2

(R=F——FEA—HMA)

REZEERL  FHEESS2ZREEATNZT
SEHMKT - RMEEREEHTESERSRE
EER-Z--F-A-ARBERZEHFM - F
REMEESTE S/ MERRELRTAE
BHTESREREEBHMER 2 RARK
B UEHMBESRIERFTR

ESHEERREEANAREWBLREHM
HRESZHRE EBE-2——F+ZA=+
—HLFEXNTFAARNEESNEEFTIIRG
BEBMEMEET

(appointed on 1 July 2011)

In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee approved the remuneration
packages of the Group’s executive Directors and senior management
effective 1 January 2012 after considering market remuneration levels of
comparable companies. During that year, the Remuneration Committee
also reviewed the principles and policies of the remuneration structure of
the Group’s executive Directors and senior management with reference to
an external consulting report, and submitted recommendations to BEC for
further discussion.

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011 are shown in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Accountability and Audit

Directors’ and Auditors’ responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and their announcements to shareholders and
commit to the presentation of a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditors’ reporting responsibilities are stated in the Auditors’ Report
on pages 70 to 71.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998 and currently
comprises three non-executive Directors and four independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Mr. Ng Siu Ping
and Mr. Ip Chi Shing were appointed as members of the Audit Committee
on 1 July 2011 and 1 January 2012 respectively. Major duties of the Audit
Committee include :

o reviewing financial information of the Group

o overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures

o monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditors

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the Company Secretary upon
request.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31 December
2011 and the attendance of each member at these meetings is shown in
the table below :

HE=E
RE Member Attendance
BESSTE(ERF) Mr. Wong Kong Chi (Chairman) 4/4
BISEHEE Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 4/4
FERLE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4
BEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
HEFEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
RBEEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2/2

(R=F——FEA—HMA)

(appointed on 1 July 2011)
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Accountability and Audit (Continued)

The Audit Committee (Continued)

In these meetings, the Audit Committee

° reviewed the results of the six months ended 30 June 2011 and of the
year ended 31 December 2011 of the Group before their approval
by the Board and in doing so, the committee focused on material
deviations of the Group’s performance from past year’s results, major
areas of judgment, selection and application of accounting policies
and compliance with regulatory requirements

o received reports from the internal audit department, discussed material
findings with the head of internal audit, reviewed the adequacy of
resources of the internal audit department and approved the internal
audit plan

. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in
accordance with established guidelines and procedures

o discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditors and
assessed its independence with reference to its policies for maintaining
independence and reviewed the extent of non-audit services
provided

o approved the audit fees paid to the Group’s external auditors
An audit committee meeting was held on 20 March 2012 to review the

Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.
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Accountability and Audit (Continued)

Internal Control

The responsibilities of designing and implementing an appropriate system
of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations rest with the management
as directed by the Board.

The internal audit department was set up in 1997 to monitor independently
the implementation of the internal control procedures, compliance with
group policies and to make recommendations on the effectiveness of the
internal control system. The head of internal audit reports to the Chief
Operations Officer and to the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
following the guidance note on the Group's Internal Control System revised
in 2008 and 2010. The revised guidance note makes reference to the new
management structure to be effective in 2012 and places emphasis on the
effective implementation of risk reduction action plans.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the fee paid/payable to the Group’s
external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows :

Bt/ EtEA

FriRfit = iR Services rendered Fee paid/payable

FHT

HK$'000

BIRG Audit services 3,890
FEZRTES Non-audit services

FIBRTE Taxation services 282

EEPHRE Interim review 1,170

EROED Audit of provident fund 18

REZ2BRREES

AREAEEEHER  Z2RBERIFNSEER
B BEEN-T--F-A-HERIBREZR
PRREES - REZ2BRREESTHMMIEH
TESR=ZUBIFHTESAN  REBFEE

EREE - BESELE - RBPTEERTERSE
E  ERBEERSAERIE -

REZ2RREZEGTZATUAREBHIRESR
R Z2EREBERIFEXTLRMESR - BEZ
PRAEZEESZHEEECEHNAQTEE
A A B A RMEERREHRER -

Health, Safety and Environment Committee

In recognition of the importance of the health, safety and environmental
protection works to the Group, the Board established a Health, Safety and
Environment Committee on 1 January 2012. This Committee comprises of
two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
including Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Wong Kong Chi, Mr. Ng Siu Ping and Mr. Li
Chak Man, and is chaired by Mr. Ku Yuen Fun.

The Health, Safety and Environment Committee is primarily responsible for
advising and strengthening the health, safety and environmental protection
works of the Group. The terms of reference of the Health, Safety and
Environment Committee is available on the Company’s website and from
the Company Secretary upon request.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. On 15 March 2011, Mr. Li Chak Man, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, sold and purchased 4,000 shares of the
Company each time. As the transaction date falls into the black-out period
during which Directors are prohibited from trading in the shares of the
Company, the transactions constituted non-compliance to the Model Code.
On 16 March 2011, i.e. the next day after the transaction, Mr. Li promptly
reported such inadvertence to the Stock Exchange. Having reviewed and
considered the submission and the background of the case, the Stock
Exchange confirmed that no disciplinary action would be taken against Mr.
Li for the said non-compliance. After making specific enquiries, all Directors
have confirmed that, save for the incident described above, they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Group has always set a high priority in forging good investor relationship
and in improving corporate transparency. To these ends, the Group frequently
communicates with investors and shareholders on a direct and timely basis
to ensure that all investors and shareholders are treated fairly.

The Group’s Corporate Communications Department regularly
communicates with shareholders and investors on the latest development,
financial situation and strategies of the Group through various channels. In
2011, it has held more than 90 meetings with local, mainland and foreign
investors, fund managers and analysts; participated in over 20 telephone
conferences and attended some 20 road shows in Hong Kong, the mainland
and overseas. In addition, the department has also arranged 20 investors
and shareholders to visit various plants of the Group for them to gain a
better understanding of the business operations.
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders (continued)

Every year the Group will hold two results announcement conferences for
interim results and annual results plus an annual general meeting to provide
shareholders and investors with timely results information and business
update. In addition, every quarter the Group will issue an electronic
newsletter to investors and the media. It will also issue press releases
regularly and communicate via e-mails with investors and shareholders on
the Group's latest and important information. The Group will also update its
website regularly and bolster information disclosure on its investor relation
webpage in order to facilitate investors and shareholders to more easily and
quickly obtain the information they require.

The Group will continue to improve its information disclosure and
transparency through different communication channels and will further
strengthen effective communication with shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders.

|- 1]
Annual Gener
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip’s Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 152, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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BB S Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-Z——F+=A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2011

—E——F —ZT-TF
—B—H=% mMA—BZ
—B——F —B-BF
t=A=t—-A +=A=+-8
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FisE FBT FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BXE Turnover 6 8,275,569 5,654,783
SHER AR Cost of sales (7,136,083) (4,718,268)
ER Gross profit 1,139,486 936,515
Hug A Other income 94,630 56,368
Hib R EsE Other gains and losses 8 59,005 44,781
HEREHEER Selling and distribution expenses (348,169) (256,764)
TEHER Administrative expenses (619,193) (409,969)
FEEH Interest expense 9 (28,742) (12,735)
BB AT T Profit before taxation 10 297,017 358,196
HE Taxation 11 (54,850) (41,357)
REHAFF] Profit for the year/period 242,167 316,839
Hib2EE () Other comprehensive income (expense)
EfrEmEE Exchange differences arising on translation
ZERER 108,505 107,101
ReRehEs Net adjustments on cash flow hedges (8,830) (2,007)
RE HEEREES Total comprehensive income
for the year/period 341,842 421,933
RE S HREERI (G EE Profit for the year/period attributable to:
AATRE Owners of the Company 201,344 264,509
RS Non-controlling interests 40,823 52,330
242,167 316,839
NEHREIRGEELPEE ¢ Total comprehensive income for the
year/period attributable to:
AARRR Owners of the Company 286,772 356,472
IR R S Non-controlling interests 55,070 65,461
341,842 421,933
FRER Earnings per share 13
% - Basic HK36.3 cents HK48.0 cents
-8 — Diluted HK36.1 cents HK47.6 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZ——F+="HA=+—H At 31 December 2011

—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
Bt FET FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ERENEE Non-current assets
ME - BEKREE Property, plant and equipment 14 1,153,357 983,340
R LES Prepaid lease payments 15 218,518 119,922
[GES Goodwill 16 71,462 71,462
mEEE Intangible assets 17 19,204 25,178
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment 18 23,167 22,200
BEME  BERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
Rt AET£ plant and equipment and land use rights 47,017 28,225
HibEReEE Other non-current asset 19 4,600 4,600
1,537,325 1,254,927
mENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 877,150 765,643
LGS T EE Trade and bills receivables 21 2,560,983 1,976,265
HAb U BRF R FES Other debtors and prepayments 21 295,678 232,305
S LS Prepaid lease payments 15 5,003 2,926
EHRITER Short-term bank deposits 22
—-R=EARTE — with original maturity within
three months 120,128 13,155
- ZR={EA%EIE - with original maturity more
than three months 445,337 336,599
RITHEBRRES Bank balances and cash 22 596,024 545,737
4,900,303 3,872,630
NABEHENEE Asset classified as held for sale 14 2,814 -
4,903,117 3,872,630
mEAR Current liabilities
EARRRESTEA Creditors and accrued charges 23 1,386,825 1,185,201
FERBER Taxation payable 77,028 94,310
BNMEA R EER Dividend payable to a non-controlling
Rz RE shareholder of a subsidiary = 3,496
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 24 2,795 7,777
RITEE - —FAZH Bank borrowings — amount due
within one year 25 938,600 944,369
RITEX Bank overdrafts = 1,059
2,405,248 2,236,212
RENEERE Net current assets 2,497,869 1,636,418
HEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 4,035,194 2,891,345
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SRE BRI F Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E——F —E-TF
2011 2010
Bt FET FiExT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEIRE Non-current liabilities
fTESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 24 11,052 -
RITEE - —F&3H Bank borrowings — amount due
after one year 25 1,220,833 291,833
Wt B BT B B RE S Consideration payable for acquisition of
ERES2RE additional interests in a subsidiary 2,400 -
EEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 26 8,848 6,557
1,243,133 298,390
2,792,061 2,592,955
B AR kiR Capital and reserves
B Share capital 27 55,515 55,304
] Reserves 2,416,766 2,241,843
EATFIRREEES Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,472,281 2,297,147
FEEBRER Non-controlling interests 319,780 295,808
2,792,061 2,592,955

ENEERIDEZGEUBEREEN=F—=
FZA-TLERESSHERRETE  UH
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are signed on its behalf by:

EF DIRECTOR
BFiEHE

Mr. Ip Chi Shing

DIRECTOR
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 152 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2012 and
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z——F+=A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2011

ERNELARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRE  FIRK el #2R
i ik i i
BE BfRE Shate o HWEE  ERGE  iEBE Gptdl  REBER Non-
Share Share option ~ distributable Hedging ~ Translation Legal  redemption Retained 2 controlling it
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserve profits Total interests Total

TEL TER TEn TEn TEn TER TEL TEL TEL TEL TER TEn
HK 000 HK 000 HK 000 HK 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK 000 HK 000 HK000

WoE-SEMA-A At Awd 2010 54413 553,290 1217 67715 ) 266425 19153 5416 1,112,562 2085979 21,59 2307238
RigmEL, Bichange diferences
ERZE aising on transation - - - - - 93468 - - - 93468 1363 107,101
RefisywEs Net austments on
cash flow hedges - - - - (1.505) - - - - (1,505) (502) 2007)
AR Pt o the perod . - - - - - - B 7% IR 71 7 N 17
KB AR Tota comprehensive income
() (expense)for the period - - - - (1,505) 93468 - - 264,509 356472 65,461 0193
it Sub-total 54413 553,290 211 61715 (117) 359,893 19,153 5416 131701 240,451 306,720 21911
REREEGER s issed at premium
Rk EE upon evercie of share options 81 154 (4,145) - - - - - - 31,88 - 31,288
RafkimEs Fypenses incured n connecton
pa i withissue of shares - 28) - - - - - - - 28) - 8)
TRERERER She optons cancelled and
ERE transfer to retained prfis - - (12) - - - - - 1 - - -
HEKBATEER Bchange difeences released
CEREE upon deregistation of
subsidiaries - - - - - (31.238) - - 31,38 - - -
&5 Transler - - - - - - 36% - (3636) - - -
2R Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (176,504) (176,564) - (176,564)
BAREOTAER  Divdends pad to on-onroling
RERE shareholdersof subsidares - - - - - - - - - - (10912) (10912)
H-%-3%
t2h=1-1 At 31 December 2010 55,304 587,804 3060 67,715 (117) 38655 078 5416 128,121 2097147 295,808 259295
RighELz Bxchange diferences arsing
EZE ontrandlation - - - - - 94814 - - - 94814 13,691 108,505
Fenistnas Net acustments on cash flw hedges - - - - 9386) - - - - 9.386) 556 (8830)
KEEH| Proftforthe year - - - - - - - - 20134 0134 083 W1
KERAEhE Total comprehersiv incore
() (expense)for theyear - - - - 9386) 94814 - - 0134 8677 55,070 U180
IG5 Sub-tofal 55,304 587,804 3,060 67,715 (11,103) 43469 078 5416 1429465 2583919 350878 2934797
REREEGER Shes issed t premium upon
Rk e erdseofshare aptions M 790 (906) - - - - - - 0 - 7200
RafkimEs Eypenses incured n connecton
2BR with isue ofshares - (16) - - - - - - - (16) - (16)
ISERRLRE Acquiston of addiionl iterest
(K&35) in a subsiciary (Note 35) - - - - - 8384 - - (5,00) 3285 (19,285) (16,000)
SHRBOARERZ  Echange difeences released
EFZE upon deregistation of
asubsidiary - - - - - (#10) - - 40 - - -
EE Transfer - - - - - - 11,758 - (1,758) - - -
2R Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (122,114) (122,114) - (122,114)
BAREOTAER Dividends pad to on-onroling
R&hs shareholders of subsciaries - - - - - - - - - - (11813) (1181)
HoE--%
t2h=1-8 At 31 December 2011 55,515 595,690 2154 67,715 (11,103) 83148 34547 5416 1290904 240,281 319,780 2,792,061

DIRIEBIESRORPERENHBATHEER  The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained profits of
HEFARERBRERUTRIE2ES ()0 certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China for capital re-investment
HUTFEBBEINBEREEEE - in these subsidiaries and funds shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses

or (ii) expand production operations.

AEBRADIRZEERKEEEBUINMBLAT  The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer of profits

RIEEREFMTEE D EEERIBA R o of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal requirements in the
relevant place of registration.
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OIRERSEEXR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z——F+=HA=+—HIEE For the year ended 31 December 2011

—E——fF —E-EF
—B—H=% mMA—BZ
—E——fF —E-EF
+t=A=+—H +=A=+-—~H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEKCEER Cash flows from operating activities
BRI AT R Profit before taxation 297,017 358,196
BT . Adjustments for:
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 6,321 4318
FEfT LA S Release of prepaid lease payments 3,486 2,178
Y BERREZTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 78,915 56,408
AHHEERE ZREWRA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment (8,590) -
fTEEmMIANABEZEL Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments 5,498 5,954
FNEEH Interest expense 28,742 12,735
HE FHENE - BER (Gain) loss on disposaliwritten-off of property,
REREMLHES plant and equipment and
2 () B8 prepaid lease payments (3,972) 2,631
FEURA Interest income (20,175) (10,701)
RITAREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 3,128 -
e B EREREE 2 8 Amounts recovered from doubtful debts (94) (733)
¥ BERRZEZ Impairment loss of property,
WEEE plant and equipment - 120
WEERATRE &R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
ZERESR inter-company balances (10,333) (8,884)
RETEBESE BRI Operating cash flows before movements
EXBRER in working capital 379,943 422,222
=78 (gm) (Increase) decrease in inventories (87,486) 64,766
FEUN BR R 2 FE U SR 458 0 Increase in trade and bills receivables (516,097) (540,061)
HMEWIRFR K BMAFRIELE I  Increase in other debtors and prepayments (55,896) (33,350)
PE{FERFR R FEST & FIE N Increase in creditors and accrued charges 140,670 116,456
EEM(EREEZRS Cash (used in) generated from operations (138,866) 30,033
ZREENESH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,347) (312)
TR PEIREZ BERER Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China paid (70,322) (28,153)
REEKF(EREEZ Net cash (used in) from operating
EEE activities (211,535) 1,568

76

RECIHMERAT —B——FEFH



FAE LT BE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—E——F —E-EF
—A—RAZE mA—RA=E
—E——F —E-EF
+=A=+-B +=p=+-8
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FTERT FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEKCEESR Cash flows from investing activities
EAZR=EAZIH Placement of short-term bank deposits with original

SEERRITIERR maturity more than three months (438,344) (239,871)
RBMZR=EA%ZEH Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits with original

EHARITIFR maturity more than three months 343,095 309,588
BEYE BERRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (203,480) (91,644)
FEAT L FH S Addition to prepaid lease payments (95,182) (20,203)
B - MERRE Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

T2 plant and equipment (47,017) (28,225)
HENE  BERRER Proceeds from disposal of property,

& PR T U 2 TR 1B plant and equipment and land use rights 24,090 1,865
2HFIR Interest received 20,175 10,701
AHEERENSRRE Dividend received from available-for-sale investment 8,590 6,742
FERERAHEERE Additional investment in available-

for-sale investment - (8,845)
WEEELEE Acquisition of intangible assets = (4,786)
REEBAERAZFRSE Net cash used in investing activities (388,073) (64,678)
RMEEKEESR Cash flows from financing activities
EEMTER Bank loans raised 3,011,010 1,214,388
EBIRTER Repayment of bank loans (2,087,410) (1,067,198)
TARE Dividends paid (122,114) (176,564)
RS Interest paid (28,742) (12,735)
B A TIEEBRBERME  Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries (15,309) (7,416)
IR B A RS 2 TR Payment on acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary (13,600) -
HEETEESRITEEE Net settlement of derivative financial instruments (8,174) (988)
BITRMDFTSRIE Proceeds from issue of shares 7,207 31,288
BITRHER Share issue expenses (16) (28)
RMEXKEE(ER)Z Net cash from (used in) financing activities
FHEE 742,852 (19,253)
BERBESEIFEMCOEL)  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 143,244 (82,363)
TE/HPR2RE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
REEEEE the year/period 557,833 618,535
EXFEMEE2TE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 15,075 21,661
NEHIRIE 2 IRERIREZELRE Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year/period 716,152 557,833
ReRReSHESRDOM Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
IRITHBRES Bank balances and cash 596,024 545,737
R=EAREIHZ Short-term bank deposits with original

SEERERITIERR maturity within three months 120,128 13,155

RITEX Bank overdrafts = (1,059)
716,152 557,833
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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F+=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2011

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars while the functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong dollars as its presentation
currency is because the Company is a public company with the shares
listed on the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in solvents,
coatings and lubricants.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Company changed its financial year end date from 31 March to
31 December in the last financial period. The consolidated financial
statements now presented cover a period of twelve months from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2011. Accordingly, the corresponding
comparative amounts (which cover a period of nine months from 1
April 2010 to 31 December 2010) for the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes may not be
comparable with amounts shown for the current year.
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FE B EMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"s), HKFRSs,
amendments and interpretations (INT”s) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures
Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues
Amendments to HK(IFRIC)* Prepayments of a minimum funding
-INT 14 requirement
HK(IFRIC) - INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments
* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years/period and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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A BHE R & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 32

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

HK(FRIC) - INT 20

Disclosures - Transfers of financial assets'

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities?

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures®

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial statements?

Joint arrangements?

Disclosure of interests in other entities?

Fair value measurement?

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income®

Deferred tax - Recovery of underlying assets*

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Employee benefits?

Separate financial statements?

Investments in associates and joint ventures?

Stripping costs in the production phase

-REE% of a surface mine?

! REB-——F+LtA-HREERBZFE !

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

BRI -

2 R-B-—=F—A—HRHEZBBZFE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
AR o

3 R-ZE-—EF—A— A HEBRBZFE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
AR o

4 R-ZE-——F-A—HREEZBBRZEE 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
BRI -

s R-B-——FtA—HREHEZBBZFE s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
AR o

g R-ZE-—NFE—-A A HEBBZFE g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
AR o
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A B IR & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to
the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Except for available-for-sale investment, the directors anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 9 will not affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s other financial assets and liabilities as
at 31 December 2011. Regarding the Group’s available-for-sale
investment, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all
of these five standards are applied early at the same time.
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A BIE IR & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 2013. Other than the application of the disclosure
standard of HKFRS 12, the directors consider that the application of
the other four standards may not have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013. Other than available-for-sale investment, the
application of the new Standard may not affect the measurement
and presentation of the Group’s other assets and liabilities reported
in the consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"s)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

Other than those disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised standards
will have no material impact on the results and financial position of
the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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A B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted (i.e. the non-controlling interests’ share of recognised
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition) and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference
being recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, and is presented separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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A B IR & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
and freehold land less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the release of prepaid lease payments during
the construction period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.



FESHBE@®

R
FERBAZTER FEUABRKEER
)R o BANZIFEF SRR o

&MIA
HBEERMBAMDELEEATRA
TRERKEX 2 TS BERS HBRR
FEwR .

MHREERMBRBERQIAETNRER -
BWRERBITUREEREERBERESIE
ZR A GERBR IR R ENRZ I
BERBBEERIN DRIIRHEZEINA
MHREERMBRBZLIAENEUKE
EFVBEEZ2AABRNRMEE) -
WEEBBEEUAREIRZMBEEN
MHEEEESIEZRENANERER
WFERT ©

MEEE
AEEZHBEETEIRAUATWEZ
— BRERKREWFERAHEE 28
BEE - 2BDNEMBEEZMERE
B YRINREAREE - TEEHEE
FHEMBREENEXS HEERIARE
BRER  EHBERHEEENBESL
EXFRT SR UGB RE 2B BAER
NEBEE -

ERRFEE
BRAEER - B ENBEERHERA
HEOBA B WA ERRE 2% - BE
RERREMITRRRERA (BEREBK
BERAEZE N HRBBNER - X5
MAREMRERITE) R EEERF
W EEHE(ER) BRR A IRE
RHRREFEZBRER -

BB TANF S WA THIRERFI R EAERE

S
o

A B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one of the
two categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and bills receivables, other debtors, short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. The Group classified equity investment held
for an identified long term strategic purpose as available-for-sale
investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
o breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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A B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade debtors that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of debtors could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period granted, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount is recognised
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or
other debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly derivative financial
instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of an identified
financial instrument that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.



A B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hY . - - - - - -
FESTER@®) 4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
&MIR#) Financial instruments (Continued)
HMBABREZTR(E) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
B ans Other financial liabilities
H e E(BEENMRE  RITEXZR Other financial liabilities (including creditors, bank overdrafts and
SRITIEE) DHERIRE MR FIZE SIS A bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
TTE the effective interest method.
#mITA Equity instruments
AARBITZERT AU WAERIEAEE Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
HREZRITRAE) TR - proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
FTELMT RRES Derivative financial instruments and hedging
PTETAUTETAESHNEITHAZARE Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
ENRBERAREEURERRZAAEE contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
HETE o MEENKRENEBBARRIE fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
BRER BREZTEIARBEMAN loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
ZEHRIE BHERT  RERRER designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
O BE R BUR DR BRR A A8 B - timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hedging relationship.

TREEPETEZTETI AR R BIFE Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
EBECHBEESEEEZMKEEE - financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading.
HAERE Hedge accounting

AEBEERLETETIRA(NFRERE The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the cash flow
N AEZERITEERSREZEF - of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate swap contracts).
REHEFE 2SR AEERSEHHPTA At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group documents the
MPEEHEEWEER RETSEHPR relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along
GREBEEBZEREKRE o R with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
SRBAIRFEITHIR - AREEREARE various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the
BRZETTARSTRESER MUK EE T hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
HAHEENESREEE - hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly

effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

B EE Cash flow hedges

EEMTEHSRELH P2TETAELR The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
BEE8  HEMBOREMZEKEAE designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
REREHREERNRE - HERMMH 2 comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain
wmWEE  DRREBERAEIAHMKE or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
RERE - profit or loss as other gains and losses.
EAREMEEBERIRNERRFTZ Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
SHEEPRE) NP ER TEERE accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
R FEHIBEZEBEZR HEAESEE loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or
WEFRAZEEIRHUHPEEERE — loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
1EH - income as the recognised hedged item.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedges (Continued)

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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A B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

95
Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2011 Annual Report



RE SR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FESHBE@®

W& s
WETREWHERREZ D RERE
YHER-REBBRTEMRSE A RRE
Z FEWCGEOIRH BT O e S SRR IR ©

EmZHEENCEAREmR BRI MERE
Z BT OARERD,

REMBEE 2R B WA LE T RS
RAREBMEARSSERETEABHE
o FIE WA M EE T RELZ WA
REWA TR E R BRI R BEER
5 BENZRT MG B RRE S WA
BEERHNFHBERERDMWREANZ
BEEREFEZNR -

ERRWHAA R 2 R - BIHRR
B2 REWA (BIRBEEFRIE A RER AL
EEANREEERETETE) ©

SrHE

REHRSERNER AR 2P BHIHRER - L
ZRBWEEE U EE(HNE)ETZ
RERXZ EH 2 ERERTESRE
ER(MZARAKEMEEREAEZE
HORKR RIREBR MINBREEZ
EREEYRZAZERERENTE -
BARBEMINEEEZFERERB HER
NNEEETEAZERERENTE - &
INEBERANEBZIFERREBASH
I

FERTEERHEEMEE 2B ZHER
ELENBERERRR - TERAANEEE
ZHERBEERMELECERZEFTATE
HMEzEs  EENNEZFEHEBAR
EENERZHEEEAMEERERER
BERER) BERELEREIFEEEH
b ZE W HERT o

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the re-translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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4. FESTBE@® 4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

GhwEE) Foreign currencies (Continued)

MEVNGEHBEREMN S AEBEEHE For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
KREERBENERNBRERRZERER the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
TEREAEEZIRER(EET)  MA into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
WARZE D RZAEZ FIERETH at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
B BRIEEZRZBEAHERREKRE A and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
BRI - RIEIERT @ BIERARXZ S ER rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
ZEREZ - fIEEZERZR(ME) during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
RE 2 W A TR I RIE AR R (B dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
Sk - recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

(the translation reserve).

H-Z-ZHFNA—HE HESIER From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign operation
(HEREEREIER 22 BERE » (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
BREXAEEBEENEBERZHMNB AR or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
IR HEEIE) K BARD T REENS a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
DEERNERTRTZEELEZES equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
B AEEBE o 1IN RIBHEHENE Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a
AEMEREHAEEE REZWE A AE partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
HlEmS  HEGRITEL ZEREEL control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
Bt NFEIER#ER - BT SRNIBREER - exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests

and are not recognised in profit or loss.

R-ZZEZHFMA—A=HNUE  RKES Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
NEBEMBRBBAUBINEEEEZER arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
BERAAREFARDBWNRZEIIMNEEHE 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
BrEEREBE URRBREHRZER and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
ERETHE EECEREZBEDIRER reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
RERTER - translation reserve.
RZZZRFNAE—BZa 0 RUKEEN Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
EBEmMBBBUBNEEMEEZERE arising on acquisition of foreign operations before 1 April 2005
BERAAERABRDERBEENFEEE 2 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer
SMETER o 30 DAY BB S RN ABR © and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the date of the
acquisition.
BEAE Borrowing costs
WiE - BEREECEREE(AEARR Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
REBUEZEREAZRIIHEEZE production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
EIZEEELBEREAFAZEEEZ a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
RA BEZEEEARTEZERER are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
ZRUEHEERAL -BEBEESRE substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
EREERZA  BEFRBREMBZIR earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
BEWABREGERERML 2B ERAH their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
Bk o costs eligible for capitalisation.
FIEREMEERATDRAEEEHEREERS All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
PR o in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Share options granted and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

Share options granted and vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience, expectations of the
future and other information. The key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$71,462,000 (31.12.2010: HK$71,462,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.
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A BIE IR & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$1,559,322,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HK$25,978,000) (31.12.2010: carrying amount
of HK$1,340,393,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$24,850,000).

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for goods
sold to customers during the year/period, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently
classified under the following business divisions, namely solvents,
coatings, lubricants and others. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its operating segment information.

Principal activities of the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

Solvents  —  manufacture of and trading in solvents and
related products

Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings
and related products

Lubricants —  manufacture of and trading in lubricants products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
interest income, dividend income, fair value change on derivative
financial instruments, gain or loss on disposal of corporate assets,
central administration costs and interest expense. This is the
information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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6. Turnover and Segment Information

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by reportable
and operating segments for the year/period under review is as

follows:
25
2 8
Reportable
BH B BEH  segment Hfh  RBEH &E
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants total Others  Elimination Consolidated

T TiEn TR L TR TR TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BE_Z——% Year ended
+ZA=+—HILEE 31 December 2011

PEERH Segment revenue

HIMNEE External sales 4,988,517 2,821,351 416,201 8,226,069 49,500 - 8,275,569

PEREE Inter-segment sales 111,593 - - 111,593 - (111,593) -
fks) Total 5,100,110 2,821,351 416,201 8,337,662 49,500 (111,593) 8,275,569
S Results

PEEE Segment results 219,477 84,530 4,474 308,481 1,043 3,064 312,588
ITEemIA Fair value change on

B derivative financial

instruments (5,498)

RATMA Unallocated income 41,978
ROLER Unallocated expenses (23,309)
FISER Interest expense (28,742)
B AT Profit before taxation 297,017
ZZ-ZEMA—H  Period from

E22-2F 1 April 2010 to

+ZA=+—HHM 31December 2010
PEEEE Segment revenue

HIMEE External sales 3,356,111 1,947,839 283,742 5,587,692 67,091 - 5,654,783

PEHEE Inter-segment sales 89,391 - - 89,391 - (89,391) -
feks) Total 3,445,502 1,947,839 283,742 5,677,083 67,091 (89,391) 5,654,783
$5 Results

PEEE Segment results 244,312 109,836 5,799 359,947 4979 4,099 369,025
iTEemIA Fair value change on

RREZEL derivative financial

instruments (5,954)

RATBA Unallocated income 23,780
FHRER Unallocated expenses (15,920)
FISBR Interest expense (12,735)
BB AR Profit before taxation 358,196

7 $R R S S B SN E E VIR RRABIE ©

PR A B

e —FEER

Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as external
sales.
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EXRBEREB T B@ 6. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
¥BoME) Segment information (Continued)
(b) RMEZTHE (b) Other information
THeBEEEHEIEBEISE Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit or loss
BE or segment assets:
Y|
AR
Reportable tEER
aH 2 b segment Hfi Corporate &8
Solvents Coatings Lubricants total Others level  Consolidated
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BESZ—-% Year ended

TZRZ+-BLEE  31December 2011

FREBEERE (W)  Additions tonon-current

assets (note) 73919 260,901 10,604 345,424 1 6,142 351,577
WE BERZBEZIE  Deprecition of property,

plant and equipment 27,935 42,290 4,380 74,605 642 3,668 78,915
EORR R £ Release of prepaid

lease payments 1,290 2,052 113 3,455 - 31 3,486
BYEEZBE Amortisation of

intangible assets 2970 3307 44 6,321 - - 6,321
HE/RENE Loss (gain) on disposal/

BERZER written-off of property,

THEREZ plant and equipment

BE/ (57 and land use rights 3,206 (8,849) 1,671 (3972) - - (3972)
ZZ-ZEMA-AE  Period from 1 April 2010 to

ZB-ZE+ZA=-H  31December 2010

]

EHBEERE (W) Additions to non-current

assets (note) 36,071 102,888 7436 146,395 - 1,654 148,049
W% BERREZNE  Depreciation of property

plant and equipment 19,954 30,028 3314 53,29 458 2,654 56,408
Bfit#EoHH Release of prepaid lease payments 854 1302 - 2,15 - n 2178
% BERRE Impairment loss of property,

HERE plant and equipment - 120 - 120 - - 120
Bl EEBE Amortisation of intangible assets AN 2114 3 4318 - - 4318
HE/RENE Loss (gain) on disposal

BELREZ written-off of property

B8/ (87 plant and equipment 736 1725 203 2,664 - (33) 2631

MiE: FRBEETEEERMIA

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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6. EXFEREKRIE @ 6. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
Lo Segment information (Continued)
() TEBERZIIREBIENIEEE (c)  Ananalysis of the Group’s segment assets and segment liabilities
RoOBEEI AT by reportable and operating segments is as follows:
RAE 728 b e
Solvents Coatings Lubricants  Consolidated
FHEx FTET FET FTER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
R _T——5F At 31 December 2011
+-A=+—H
BE Assets
2P EEE Reportable segment assets 2,586,985 2,326,189 257,584 5,170,758
Hith Others 39,398
Hiv R o BEE Other unallocated assets 1,230,286
RERER Consolidated total assets 6,440,442
8f& Liabilities
2inEaE Reportable segment liabilities 798,782 512,746 44,029 1,355,557
Hity Others 4,337
FEHBRX Taxation payable 77,028
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 8,848
HitvRABEE Other unallocated liabilities 2,202,611
REBAas Consolidated total liabilities 3,648,381
RIE-Z% At 31 December 2010
+-A=+—H
BE Assets
2P EEE Reportable segment assets 1,963,052 1,927,140 226,554 4,116,746
Hit Others 59,222
HtRPBERE Other unallocated assets 951,589
REHEE Consolidated total assets 5,127,557
=1 Liabilities
2inEaE Reportable segment liabilities 655,612 457,576 48,670 1,161,858
Hity Others 4,736
FERBR Taxation payable 94,310
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 6,557
HitvRABEE Other unallocated liabilities 1,267,141
FABas Consolidated total liabilities 2,534,602
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BEBNERS B @)

RESB ()
() REZIBRARIBERTS
DR

e MEHRITER  RITEHKRK
R TEemMIAERKRSE
EEN MBEEIBTER
28R

° KBREMHIN - ELHESE-
B ARFERRR 2R
B fT£4mI A RITEE
HEBTEXRADBEEEN
FEaBIBTEBIE -

MERHE
EEZE-_Z——F+-A=t—HILFE "
REBHIIEF2EHE TEREFE
RENEF(MBEEEEEARME
F) H&%57,923,143,0008 T (=& —
EEMA-HAE=ZE-EF+-_A=+—
A :5,540,914,000/8 7T) ° AREB A IBMH I
REEE(TEFESRITA) A RBEIRRE
(BEZEEZEBARAfEMS) &5
#%1,510,780,0008 (= E—ZF+=-A=
+—H :1,213,747,000 7T ) °

FRER

RAERSHE  AREEEEREF#
BEEBAEEEEENAD 2T

FE B EMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Turnover and Information

(Continued)

Segment

Segment information (Continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

3 all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments and the unallocated
assets; and

3 all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities, dividend
payable to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
derivative financial instruments, bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts and the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers for the year ended 31
December 2011 was substantially generated from customers located
in the Mainland China (place of domicile of the group entities that
derives turnover) amounting to HK$7,923,143,000 (1.4.2010 to
31.12.2010: HK$5,540,914,000). Substantially all of the Group’s
non-current assets excluding financial instruments were also located
in the Mainland China (place of domicile of the group entities that
holds such assets) amounting to HK$1,510,780,000 (31.12.2010:
HK$1,213,747,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over 10% of the
turnover of the Group for both reporting periods.
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7. EEMEREEMS 7. Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’
Emoluments
ENRERFI3E(ZZE—ZFNA—BZE The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 13 (1.4.2010 to
—E-FF+ZA=+—H:13R)EE= 31.12.2010: 13) directors were as follows:
BemT :
3R EREA

A ERH EER U AR 287 TER ARR BER ERSActeng 2ER 2ER

] p Wong WaiMan, ~ Ho  Ng  Ting Young  Tong Wong Tsan Pong, L KuYuen 8
Ghihing  TozHin KamYim  Peter SaiHou SuPing HonYam ManKim WeiTung KongChi  Davie ChakMan ~ Fn  Total
TAn TEn THn TEr TEr THEr TEr THr TEr Thr TEn Thn TR TR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

=

BE-B-—E+ZR=t-H  Yearended 31 December 2011

LtFE
Ezhe Fees 400 400 400 40 400 300 400 40 320 500 20 200 300 460
Hirie Other emoluments
FEREMEA Salries and other benefis 3403 2461 162 15 1365 84 14 4™ - - - - - 3%
FEAERERARARL Discretonary bonus e I ) e ]
BRERELL Retiement benefitscheme
contributions 1% 1 15 18 63 g6 133 150 - - - - - 10
HegE Totelemoluments 3% 33 3m 238 218 L0 10 288 30 S0 W0 20 30 266
3R BRES
A OEBE EPH OEGE U RBY TEM BRR BER EEL Avang 2ER4ES
b b Yp Wong WaMen,  Ng  Tng Yong  Tong  Wong TsenPong, U Kuten 65
Chihing FungKuan ~ TzHin KamYm  Peter SuPng HonVam ManKim WhiTng KongChi  Davie ChakMan — Fn  Tofdl
Tén Thr TEu TR TEn TR TEn TR TEn TEu TEr TEn TR TEn
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z5-3%mA-RE Period from 1 April 2010
ZE-BETZAZT-RER  to31December 2010
Eohe Fees 300 - 300 300 300 300 30 00 A0 310 10 NS 340
HirHe Other emoluments
E4RAfER Salares and other benefis 2530 - 1766 172 114 106 1046 117 - - - - - 98%
FEAERERARARL Discretonary bonus (T 1 T - - - - - - B
ISR e Retiement benefitscheme
contrbutions 13 - 08 104 % % 108 - - - - -6l
HesE Totel emoluments B - 0B 8 17 80 LW 10 M0 3510 1015 1580
BieE - Notes
(@) BE=ZZE——F+=-A=+—HLEFE:" (@  Thedirectors’ salaries and other benefits above included operating leases
ESvHeR LA HMENBELERXAE rentals of HK$1,560,000 (1.4.2010 to 31.12.2010: HK$1,170,000) for
H£1,560,0008 T (—ZE—ZFMA—H the year ended 31 December 2011.
E-E-ZTHF+ZA=+—H 1,170,000
BIT) °
(b) FREERERIBM2IEANBEFE (b)  The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the operating
Bz EEEE  AARBREENRTS results, individual performance and comparable market statistics during
ZRETEURTRE © the year/period.
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AEBSUEFHESEEFNAEARE
B(CE-ZFNA-RAEZE-EF+=
B=+—8:4u) EBSFER Ll
B HEpEEAB 2 FMaT ¢

FE B EMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, five
(1.4.2010 t0 31.12.2010: four) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining
one individual in prior period were as follows:

—EB-BFNA-BE
=E-FFt+t=A=1-H
1.4.2010

to

31.12.2010

TET

HK$'000

FEREAMER
RIRBFIFTEMERR

EUEMEREHE - AEERBE A
ETUFHES2EE(BRIFES) U
W S| E AN A SR E AN A 5 (B B o A R R
B ltsh REESEMERSHEAR
REMME

Salaries and other benefits

2,276

Retirement benefit scheme contribution 76

2,352

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. In addition, no director waived any emoluments during
both reporting periods.

Hib W zs ) B518 Other Gains and Losses
—E2——F —E-EF
—A—RAZE mMA—AZE
—E2——F —E-EF
+=—HA=+—H +=-A=+—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE AU Net exchange gain 63,565 52,633
TEEmMIAZ Fair value change on derivative
DNREED financial instruments (5,498) (5,954)
HE FHEWE C BE  Net gain (loss) on disposal/written off of property,
KRB R L i AR plant and equipment and land use rights
Z R (&) 3,972 (2,631)
(24 =l (Allowance for) recovered from
EERRRER bad and doubtful debts (3,034) 733
59,005 44,781
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9. FIREH 9. Interest Expense
—EB——F —E-EF
—HA—HBZE MA—HZE
—E——5F —E-EF
+=A=+t—H +=A=+—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FTHEx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAREFABEEEZ Interest on bank borrowings wholly
ZIRITREMNRE repayable within five years 22,729 12,212
FREHIEERTE Net loss arising on interest rate swaps
B ZRETRELEH designated as cash flow
MELXZFEE hedges of floating rate debt 6,013 523
28,742 12,735
10. BRB AR 10. Profit Before Taxation
—E2——F —E-EF
—A—HZE mME—HZE
—E——fF —E-TF
+=A=+—H +=A=+-—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBLAT R F] Profit before taxation has been arrived
BHRTHEE : at after charging:
AR Amortisation of intangible assets 6,321 4,318
BT & Auditors’ remuneration
—REE HIR — current year/period 4,073 4,071
—EEDRREE — underprovision in prior year 138 150
M« BMEKRREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 78,915 56,408
¥ BMEKRRZE Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
ZRERE - 120
HEMECEE Operating lease payments in respect
HEXIFIE of rented premises 22,488 12,425
FE(S L it FE S e Release of prepaid lease payments 3,486 2,178
BINAEE Staff costs, including directors’
EEME (FHEE7) remuneration (note 7) 535,889 363,056
WREFTA - and after crediting:
RAK I EERE Compensation for early termination
ZEx (&) for operating lease* (Note) 21,515 -
F WA * Interest income* 20,175 10,701
BER BN E > Government grants recognised* 13,684 9,987
AR EREIREUWA* Dividend income from available-for-sale investment* 8,590 -

* 2EFAHAMBA

* All included in other income

Mz RER-ZFZ——FHAHEBIYE=H
TEEXNHETzHE AEEEHE
21,515,000 T » HRREBZEFRIRA
KRIEEBEAREERPEAEAEZ—EL
ih 2 & R o

e —FEER

Note: Pursuant to an agreement entered into with an independent third party
(the “Landlord”) in April 2011, the Group received a compensation
of HK$21,515,000 as the Landlord would like to early terminate an
operating lease agreement in respect of a parcel of land leased to the
Group located in the Mainland China.
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1. BE 11. Taxation
—E——F —E-EF
—A—HAZE mME—HZE
—E——F —E-EF
+=A=+t—H +=A=+—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITHIE-BB Current tax — Hong Kong
EH Current year/period 295 801
AFZREE Overprovision in previous years (505) -
(210) 801
FriSHi — HE AP Current tax — Mainland China
REH Current year/period 65,970 61,568
AFEZIREE Overprovision in previous years (13,201) (20,729)
52,769 40,839
52,559 41,640
IEERIIE (FiEE26) Deferred taxation (note 26)
BB Hong Kong (260) 242
B RRE Mainland China 2,551 (525)
2,291 (283)
54,850 41,357
EBNEBIEWE RS B A ERT S Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
Fl16.5%5T& ° assessable profit for both reporting periods.
REBETFEZEARREFEICEMRESHATRE Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Fr8RE ) REEFMEHABHRMEA > & Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
BEAEMBARNZBHEE _ZENEFE—A tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% from 1 January
—HEA25% ° 2008 onwards.
RABARELEE CAEBNBRAREZEES The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are eligible for
FTRENEHREER - RIETEXEER certain tax holidays and concessions. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
EERBA  ARBREBETHEKRERB A regulations in Mainland China, certain subsidiaries of the Company
AEEREXRES BN EERLREWERE in Mainland China are entitled to exemption from enterprise income
HePEAECENSH  MARZE tax of Mainland China for the first two years commencing from their
BAEMBARSERNEEREEZE S — first profit-making year of operation and thereafter, these subsidiaries
—HFIZ=FRBRPEAARECEMSHE in Mainland China will be entitled to a 50% relief from enterprise
S50% &R o PEIKELEMBHRENRFTA income tax of Mainland China for the following three years up to
ZERSEBREEHERE - 2012. Enterprise income tax of Mainland China has been provided for

after taking these tax incentives into account.

BB B2 HENREREEAEEZ Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
BAMEGNEHE - in the relevant jurisdictions.
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1. BB @

RBE-Z-ZF+-A=1+—-HILHA
ZBERBIEAEETAQXARPEK
BEZHBARR-ZE-—FFRIPFEES
ZRENFERASHRMEEMERBR
BREBEZBR - Bt ZEWBAR 2L

BRI ERE15% °

11. Taxation (Continued)

Overprovision for the period ended 31 December 2010 mainly related
to tax refund from tax bureau to certain subsidiaries of the Company
in Mainland China for successfully claiming in 2010 as High and New
Technology Enterprise status since 2009. The income tax rate of these
subsidiaries is thus reduced to 15%.

HBZHIRROT : A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
—E——F —E-Z
—A—HZE mME—HBZE
—E——F —E-Z
+=BA=+t—H +=A=+—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB ATER Profit before taxation 297,017 358,196
BRAHFTSRIBIZE25%  Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of 25%
SEHER Y (1.4.2010 t0 31.12.2010: 25%)
(ZZ2—=FmMA—H
Z2-E-ZHF+-H
=+—HB:25%) 74,254 89,549
TEEBERE Overprovision in previous years (13,706) (20,729)
LI k0l Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
HERB2HE 13,933 7,530
BEHBHWA Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes
HERB2HE (14,181) (15,103)
RFURBIEEE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
HERB2HE 23,426 23,180
R Z A RFERM Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not
HEBBYBRE2FE  recognised (4,797) (435)
NMREMBAEEZMEB Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries in other
UNGIENGiEPagwd -7 jurisdictions (152) (256)
EBDMIB AT ZBEBZE Effect of income tax on concessionary rates for certain
HREH2ZE subsidiaries (33,005) (40,294)
FRE D EEF Effect of withholding tax on profits distributed during
FBIRHoEE the year 3,984 -
H RO BRI Effect of withholding tax on undistributed profits
RRERHE 3,192 -
Hits Others 1,902 (2,085)
RNEEHREBIE Taxation for the year/period 54,850 41,357

7 o BTG BB R T 48 FA A SR M A BD 49 2 7%
FE TR BB 2 B o

BRAA

e —FEER

operation of the Group is substantially based.

The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction where the
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12. RE 12. Dividends
—E——F —E-Z
—A—HZ MA—BZE
—E——F —E-Z
+=HA=t+-H +=ZA=1+-H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
WE/HRERA Dividend recognised as distribution
IREZRE during the year/period:
—E——FhERE 2011 interim dividend of HK8.0 cents (1.4.2010 to
PRS0 31.12.2010: nine months ended 31 December 2010
(Z2-TFMA—-AZE of HK12.0 cents) per share
—E-ZF+-A=+-H:
BE-Z-EF
+=A=+—HLIER
REER12.0/840) 44,412 66,353
—E——FHRIRE 2011 special dividend of HK4.0 cents (1.4.2010 to

BRAOB(ZZ—FF  31.12.2010: nil) per share

MA—HZ-Z-ZF

+tZA=+—H ' §\) 22,206 -
ZZ-FFE+ZHA=1+—H 31 December 2010 final dividend of HK10.0 cents

HARBRE - Z8R10.0E4 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: 31 March 2010

(ZZZAENA—-RZE final dividend of HK20.0 cents) per share

—E-ZF=A=1+-H:

—E-ZF=A=+-H

HARRES820.0840) 55,496 110,211

122,114 176,564

EEeEIRREHEBE=Z——F+ The final dividend equivalent to HK12.0 cents per share totalling
—RAEt+—HLEFEEHRRESRI20 not less than HK$66,000,000, with an option to receive shares of
BAL TREBURRE BLBETIR the Company, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011 has
66,000,000/ 7T » WHERREMAGRTZ been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
REBFAE LREBS - shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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13. 8REF 13. Earnings Per Share
ARATRRELGBREAREEERRATY The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
RETHERGE : to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

—E——F —E-ZF
—A—HZ MA—HBZ
—E——F —E-ZF
+=A=+-H +=-A=+-H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
TET TER
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE HRARD B REREM  Profit for the year/period attributable to owners of
AARFTEERERR the Company and earnings for the purposes of
BERRAZER calculating basic and diluted earnings per share 201,344 264,509
R EE
Number of shares
TR Fa
‘000 ‘000
STEEREREFRZ Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
DNFEF 9 IR & of calculating basic earnings per share 554,365 550,582
TR EBROMEEZ Effect of dilutive potential
R ordinary shares:
BEARAE Share options 3,293 5,403
STESREER Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
BRIz eI R & of calculating diluted earnings per share 557,658 555,985
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14. 1% - BERRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
BA - #ER
WOERE
BELHRET Furniture,
EEIE  AAERIH Leaseold fixtures AE HERES
Construction Freehold land and and office Motor Plant and Ait
in progress [and buildings equipment vehicles machinery Total

TR TR TEn TR Tién TEn TEn
HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000

REE AT COST
H-2-ZEMA-A At1 Aprl 2010 16,946 3914 556,891 %24 56915 579,738 1313,646
NELZER Currency realignment 820 30 25,161 2676 2419 277307 58,693
Efipx Redlassification (16,869) - 4383 8,668 - 3818 -
HE Additons 41,40 - 6843 10212 6,233 55350 11978
LE/RE Disposalsfwriten off - - (505) (8034) (4022 9726) (22,287)
W=2-FE+2A=1-A At 31 December 2010 {137 4204 592773 112,764 61,545 656,487 1,469,930
NELRER Currency realignment 1271 (23) 24,693 5,200 2119 2689 60,003
EGEEEENAE Reclassifcations to

asset held for sale - (3991) - - - - (3.991)
EfiRE Reclassification (14926) - 459 9,113 - 5,354 -
HE Additions 133,704 - 2,099 7305 9,141 7943 231,705
te/RE Disposalshwritten off - - (59553) 9531) (3.441) (1309) (85617)
WE--EtZf=t-A At 31 December 2011 16,186 - 560471 124871 69,424 755,078 1,672,030
HERBEER DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
H-2-ZEMA-A At1 Aprl 2010 - 1034 139,561 66912 7705 192,566 4779
NELZER Currency realignment - 9 6,644 1,664 1311 10345 20,055
BhTERR Deprediation provided

for the period - - 15,391 7488 521 28257 56,408
e Impaiment logs for

the period - 120 - - - - 120
HE/RERES Eliminated on disposals

witten off - - (67) (7820) (3174) (6730) (17,791)
W=2-FE+2A=1-A At 31 December 2010 - 1,245 161,529 68,244 31,13 24438 486,590
NELEER Curtency realignment - (68) 1175 3737 1,008 9,642 21,494
ERTERR Depreciation provided

forthe year - - 19740 11,504 7463 40,208 78915
GEGEEEENAE Reclassifcations to

asset held for sale - (1177) - - - - (1177)
HE/REREHE Fliminated on disposals

written off - - (48154) (8799) (2662) 7534) (67,149)
WE--EtZf=t-A At 31 December 2011 - - 140,290 74,686 36,943 266,754 518673
Bl CARRYING VALUES
e i At 31 December 2011 167,186 - 420181 50,185 32481 188304 1,153,357
WoB-BETZA=1-A At 31 December 2010 Q137 2979 431,204 4520 30411 132,009 983340
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14. % - BERZE® 14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
EXFrE - MERKZBERIUEA The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
ESRBRUT ERITE - a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

KA SERE L 3 i1 Freehold land Nil
HE T 2% UAFR L) 2 15 gR Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
FH - UBEETE term of the lease or 2%
BF 2.5%B AFR A 2 s g Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining term
FH - UBEETE of the lease or 2.5%
B HBER  45%F25% Furniture, fixtures and 4.5% t0 25%
PWNERIE office equipment
RE 9%ZE25% Motor vehicles 9% to 25%
= R Es 6%%220% Plant and machinery 6% t0 20%
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

REEZYERIEIE © The Group’s property interests comprise:

BEUIMEBEREZ Freehold land held outside Hong Kong

KAFERELTH - 2,979
EEBFE 2 Leasehold land and building held in Hong Kong
HE T hMEF under medium-term leases 20,516 21,346
NRAEEBUIIMNEE Buildings located on land held outside
BEL BT Hong Kong under:
REHEE Long leases 177 254
hHERE & Medium-term leases 392,189 402,054
EHEE Short-term leases 7,299 7,590
420,181 434,223
R-ZB——F+—8 EEREFHEARE In November 2011, the directors determined to dispose of the
BREEBLUIIEERIEFE 2 KA ERE LM Group’s freehold land outside Hong Kong with a carrying amount
HERME{E 52,814,000/ 7t » WIEHIK R % of HK$2,814,000 and expect the freehold land will be sold within
LR+ —EAREE  BEZKA twelve months. Accordingly, it has been classified as an asset held
(T HDBAFHEFENEE  LHNER for sale and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
EMBRRESEED - financial position.
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15. AL HiEE

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEFEN T #IEEIE © The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:
BEUIMERE Leasehold land outside Hong Kong under:
HELH -
REHEE Long leases 1,354 1,318
hEIFRE Medium-term leases 222,167 121,530
223,521 122,848
DITERE R Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current assets 5,003 2,926
FREBEE Non-current assets 218,518 119,922
223,521 122,848

RZB——F+=-A=+—8 > FBLUH
hEIFE 2 HE i 2 BRE{E 596,941,000

At 31 December 2011, the leasehold land outside Hong Kong with
a carrying amount of HK$96,941,000 (31.12.2010: nil) which the

BLT(ZE-ZF+-HA=+—H ) K Group is in the process of applying for the relevant land use right
SEERFERE LI EAEREE - certificates.
16. & 16. Goodwill
&%t
Total
FAET
HK$'000
A AT COST
RZZE—ZFMA—H - At 1 April 2010, 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011
—E-ZF
+=A=+—-8AK
—E——5F
+=B=+-—8H 71,462
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16. B8 @)

REBEHBBZEELIRRBRIRE
BB HZEBEHIRIECREELE
N(HREELEN]) - BEZREES D
BT :

16. Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FEx FiEx

HK$'000 HK$'000

REREERE Manufacture of and trading in solvents 59,479 59,479
REREBERY Manufacture of and trading in coatings 10,095 10,095
REREEHER Manufacture of and trading in lubricants 1,888 1,888
71,462 71,462

REBZE-ZE——F+-A=+—HLHE

B AEECEEERLABEREZRS
EEENIEHE -

REeELBEN RS ENZACAE
EMEE FEEREENRAZEIER
RIDBEFAZURE  BRERAHHE
EEREERAZZBMER - EEEN
AIRRAKHSIEERRERZREE
LRV AEE S ERR 2 BATHE R R
RE - BREDENGER BRI
EH - HEEREERAZZBAIRER
HEAIRFEH B AT S 2R LMEE -

AREFEZEN AEEBRREEEE
MECEBSELESEN o RIENUEESE
BHZAREF(ZZ—ZF  5AF)BRS
TR WEAERIZ% (ZE-FF+
ZHA=1+—H:14%)  REWSEEHE
BEENTERBESEESENTEEEE
Rk ERAEETEZERTELN  8F
BERNF4%E12% (ZE—FF+=A
=+—H 5%Z12%) 7% - G EERER
WEREZHERRE °

e —FEEH

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment of any of its CGUs
containing goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in
use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

Forimpairment assessment purpose, the Group performed impairment
review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets for the next five years (2010: five years)
for each CGUs approved by management using a discount rate of
13% (31.12.2010: 14%) which reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates per annum range from 4% to 12% (31.12.2010: 5% to
12%) in light of the Group’s industry growth forecasts. No impairment
loss was considered necessary.
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7, >, .
17. B EE 17. Intangible Assets
BERmE
e 3 b THEHER EF#E  Trademarks
Technical Non-competition Customer and a5t
knowhow covenants relationship  patent brands Total
FiET T T FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BF AT COST
R-E-Z5NA—H At 1 April 2010 8,882 15,573 9,573 2,194 36,222
HELEER Currency realignment 59 739 - - 798
"B Additions 4,073 1,952 - 1,952 7,977
R=Z-ZF+-A=+—H At31December 2010 13,014 18,264 9,573 4,146 44,997
SNELEERE Currency realignment 57 m - - 768
RZE——&+ZB=+—H At31 December 2011 13,071 18,975 9,573 4,146 45,765
e AMORTISATION
R-E-ZENA—H At 1 April 2010 6,049 6,033 2,709 37 15,162
NELEZEE Currency realignment 17 32 - - 339
HAEE Provided for the period 747 2,134 1,177 260 4,318
RZZ-ZF+-A=+—H At31 December 2010 6,813 8,489 3,886 631 19,819
HELEER Currency realignment 24 397 - - a1
FriEe Provided for the year 1,302 3,036 1,570 413 6,321
RZZ——F+ZA=+—H At31December 2011 8,139 11,922 5,456 1,044 26,561
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZB——F+ZA=1—H At31December 2011 492 703 4m7 3102 19204
R=Z-ZF+-A=+—H At31December 2010 6,201 9,775 5,687 3,515 25,178
LB EEREREATH - ZE58 The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible
FEEDRAESER T HIF R assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:
TN 4.5-10% Technical knowhow 4.5-10 years
SRS 3-10%F Non-competition covenants 3-10 years
BEFE#% 6% Customer relationship 6 years
EER M 105 Trademarks and patent brands 10 years
RTABRROB L E=F WEEEREE Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and techniques
PMBRANERWEERMTAERED - acquired from independent third parties to manufacture certain
insulating varnish, ink and screening products.
FTHRFHRRRAKBARE  REEE Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict the vendors
WHEFSBBBE L AN FIZ10FZ45E of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the entities, to carry on the
FHRRAREHEEER same business for specific periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.
BEFBERDEZEPEBERNEIRE Customer relationship represents the customers, which are buying
ftham - RBEERAMEFERZER specialised types of paint and thinner used in audio visual equipment,
BHRRKREK o cosmetics, mobile phone and other electronic products.
BERBBEVWEZREEE 2508 Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names acquired
RIERESERTRAEHMEE - which have high recognition and awareness in the market.
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18. AMEHERE

18. Available-for-sale Investment

—E——F —T-TF
2011 2010
FHExT FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RABEARERNIE LS Unlisted equity interest in Mainland China,
RS AR at cost less impairment loss
BIERE 23,167 22,200

AT ZERESEAAERFEZR
ZBEEAZHEER L EBRERFE
ETRD - ARBZEBRBREAE M
HEEQNAE  BUIERAREBRNRE
RZBEFE -

19. Hitt3E R B EE

HEEDEAEESEEMES 2AER
(8 RBEHRELA R R RERE

The above investment represents investment in unlisted equity interest
and is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that

the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

19. Other Non-current Asset

The amount represents the cost of club debenture held by the Group
and is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, at

T2 the end of the reporting period.
20. 7& 20. Inventories

—E2——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 550,235 424,253
EHm Work in progress 46,909 58,547
B M Finished goods 280,006 282,843
877,150 765,643

REMLIHMERAT —B——FEFH
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21. EWERFI R FEWEE - Hf 21. Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors

=] =]
PE N RRFR K TR S FRIR and Prepayments
—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FHExT FHEx
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEURERTR Trade receivables 1,585,300 1,365,243
W RIREE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (25,978) (24,850)
1,559,322 1,340,393
EREE Bills receivables 1,001,661 635,872
2,560,983 1,976,265
HittEWRR R AN REEEZBEEMSE Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments in advance
FEERIE s BWHEERAS K EREELE to suppliers, commission receivable from suppliers and value-added
BF - tax receivable.
R ERREWRETIREZHE 2 IRE D An aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the invoice
MU - date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—EB——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FTHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE={EA 0 - 3 months 1,314,430 1,148,182
ZE &8 4 — 6 months 226,109 183,425
ANMEAKE Over 6 months 18,783 8,786
1,559,322 1,340,393
AEERFOHEREEFRM30KEWD The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its
APEZEER - XEES GRS HE trade customers. A longer credit period may be granted to large or
R ZREARARABEEFETFEREN long established customers with good payment history.
FEH -
EEMNEMFEFA > AEBAIHME AT Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal
FHEETLEEEFZER  EE80C credit control system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality
FnEEEEEARFEEGERER and the board of directors has delegated the management shall be
FEEE BEFZRESEHERMR - XY responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
75%(ZB—FF+=ZHA=+—H :77%) customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed periodically.
ZEWERRAMABBAIEERE  HRE Approximately 75% (31.12.2010: 77%) of the trade receivables are
ARBEXAEBHAZEEEHRSE % neither past due nor impaired as they were assessed to be of good
SRVRFRETRRIFEE - credit rating attributable under the credit control system used by the
Group.
AEERBREREECBENEWERR - Included in the Group’s trade receivables are past due debtors
#ARTHI{E 387,310,000 (=2 —ZF with aggregate carrying amount of HK$387,310,000 (31.12.2010:
+=BA=+—H :308,311,00087T) ° #% HK$308,311,000). These past due debtors are all closely monitored
SR ERRR BB ERITIRIE and by past experience, they will eventually settle their debts, so the
BELHMABRAEFNZER Bt K Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
SEVEGZERBELHEBBRRE - any collateral over these balances.
AEBRZSEHL BT EETMAEAR
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21 EWERFR R EWEE - Hfit 21,
PEUWBR FR R TR A FRIE ()

RI|EHR - EBHEEREZEBUIRK
BRZAHZREINAOT

Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors
and Prepayments (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which are past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period based on the
invoice date:

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FHET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

E2={EA 0 — 3 months 203,322 144,643
mz75EAH 4 — 6 months 165,205 154,881
NEA M E Over 6 months 18,783 8,787
387,310 308,311

EEEREIRR Z ATWEMEER - BERA
BHEEEEREAE  AEEERER
RREREZZENEEH - AAFPESR
B AEETERERFERBNED &
BRBHAERZHFREFDE

In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade debtors since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number
of counterparties and customers.

RARER Allowance for doubtful debts:

—F——F —E-ZF

—HA—HBZE mA—RAZE

—F——F —E-ZF

+=—A=+—-H +=A=+—H

1.1.2011 1.4.2010

to to

31.12.2011 31.12.2010

FTHEx FHExT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F B At beginning of the year/period 24,850 29,581
IMNEAEEELE Currency realignment 1,018 1,021
R ZREEE Impairment losses recognised 3,128 -
SR AR E 2 KIE Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,924) (5,019)
REE ZREIEURE 278 Amounts recovered during the year/period (94) (733)
FHKR At end of the year/period 25,978 24,850

REBERENBRRERNBRNE 2 FE
WERRRIEHRE - AEBMZEERIE
FEEMERG -

RECIHMERAT —B——FEEH

Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed under
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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21. EWEBRF R FEWEE - Hf 21. Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors

PEUWBR FX R TR A FRIE ()

BWRERERRTERERERTRZE
TRAER  AEBERENBREZEF
LAEE PR AT 7 5 AY R 1T R 5 BB RAER R U

BRAX o

BEHASEELAIEEZRITEALESR
REAEBRFEBRAERREH - A5l
BEBEZRTHERNZEBRITREER
T ARBRTEAERZIHARETESR
BEXfA-

RZB——F+=-A=+—8  RITER
E ZERME E 1£4,924,0008 T (ZE—FF
+=ZBA=+—H :13,374,000;87T) B 85 R
MIRTI EBERE - ALt REFEEE
BEEEHRBRRITALEZEENERE
BRIEAEBRZREBEALRESES
RITIEE (RHIFE25) Z2IH -

AR R B R R A W AR B
THEFABEEE QAR ZNEEREE
ZRIE

and Prepayments (continued)

Bills receivables represent $R477# 5 BE 52 (“banker’s acceptances”), i.e.
time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by PRC banks. The
Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables by customers using
banker’s acceptances accepted by PRC banks on a case by case basis.

These banker’s acceptances are issued to or endorsed to the Group
and with due date not longer than six months from the date of
issuance. Those banks accepting the banker’s acceptances, which are
state-owned banks or commercial banks in the PRC, are the primary
obligors for payment on the due date of such banker’s acceptances.

At31December2011, the carrying amount of the banker's acceptances
amounting to HK$4,924,000 (31.12.2010: HK$13,374,000) have
been discounted to the banks with recourse. Accordingly, the Group
continues to include these discounted banker’s acceptances under bills
receivables and has recognised the cash received as bank borrowings
with the same amount (see note 25) until maturity.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables and other debtors
are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

—EB——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 6,974 4,379
ES United States dollars (“USD") 17,390 8,814
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22.

23.

BHRITER  |RITERK
B&

SR TERRRTEBRRASQET
WA EBEE DT 2 DR EE S

FRIE -

22.

Short-term Bank Deposits, Bank Balances
and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash
are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the group entities to which they relate:

ERCIEEERAH

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FTER FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Ep usD 76,837 75,071
BT Hong Kong dollars 2,491 2,059
NG RMB 302 34,398

MEN=BAZIBZRBRTERRE
ME19%E35% (ZE—FEMA—H
EE-ZTFF+ZA=1+—H:225%Z%
2.5%)5F B4 BB TIRITERRER
E0.001%ZE19% T EFHB(ZE—FF
mMA—BAZE=-ZE—ZF+=-A=+—8:
0.001%ZE1.35%) °

AR R ESTER

R|EER  BAERARESTERESRE
FEFEH & F01,063,254,0008 T (=2 — &
F+=ZH=+—H :863,801,000/8 ) °
HRETZEFEEREFENR  BFET
FERERN - BHIHERS BEAAMHR
BEZ

RBERRENEREZBEZARZRED
AT

23.

Other than short-term bank deposits with original maturity more than
three months carrying interest ranging from 1.9% to 3.5% (1.4.2010
to 31.12.2010: 2.25% to 2.5%) per annum, all remaining bank
deposits carrying interest ranging from 0.001% to 1.9% (1.4.2010
10 31.12.2010: 0.001% to 1.35%) per annum.

Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of creditors and
accrued charges included trade creditors of HK$1,063,254,000
(31.12.2010: HK$863,801,000). Remaining balances mainly consist
of receipts in advance from customers, payable of staff salaries and
benefits, sales commission, storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the reporting period
based on the invoice date is as follows:

—ET——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FHET FiEx

HK$'000 HK$'000

ZEE2={EA 0 — 3 months 982,834 823,007
mEXREA 4 — 6 months 73,903 35,529
NEB M E Over 6 months 6,517 5,265
1,063,254 863,801

S i
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23. ENRR R ETER @ 23. Creditors and Accrued Charges (continued)
EAREREFETINHFAEEEEARZ Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated in
ThEEE M EBEZIE : currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to

which they relate:

—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FTHExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Y usb 273,516 215,366
24. fTEEMT A 24. Derivative Financial Instruments
B FERE
Current Non-current
=E——F CE-TF ZEB—-—F CZZT-ZTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FEx FEx FHET FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
D EitERE Derivatives under
ZEETR hedge accounting
AZEHELN Interest rate swap contracts (68) (2,290) (11,052) -
HttfiETR Other derivatives (not
(FERIE P EEHEERE) under hedge accounting)
IMEREIEH Foreign exchange
forward contracts (2,727) (5,487) - -
(2,795) (7,777) (11,052) -
PDR&REHPZFERHEN Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges
AEEHE S B ERITR] L ZER KRB The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap contracts with
EH BREIDHFNEERABERNE the commercial banks to minimise its exposure to cash flow changes
BHERRTZETEARBIUZERITE of its floating-rate USD and Hong Kong dollars bank borrowings from
ErvRERBRABRERK ZEEHNZ the same banks by swapping floating interest rates to fixed interest
R EE S ERE # B P IRITIEE 2% rates. The terms of these contracts were negotiated to match with
RREE-B(NEBTEEZASE ¥ those of the hedged bank borrowings with the same notional amounts
BERAMEEZEIGHEE) - ESARFIEEEH to principal amounts of bank borrowings, currency and interest rate
EHBESREIR  WRIEHPEE index. The directors consider that the interest rate swap contracts are
EEZZEIEAREREHHPTIA - highly effective hedging instruments and have designated them as
cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting purpose.
REAFEEH 2 RERERARMS ¥ The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow exposure to
HESEER BE-_ZFE——F+=A interest rate movements. Net adjustments on cash flow hedges of
=S+t-—HALFE BeREHIEEA HK$8,830,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (1.4.2010
8,830,000 T(ZE—ZEFMWA—HECZ to 31.12.2010: HK$2,007,000) have been recognised in other
Z-ZTF+-HF=+—H:2,007,000% comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. The directors
T EREMEERGEARERN RBERERE expected the accumulated sum is to be released to profit or loss when
W EEFAHMEPFEAZRIERAN the hedged interest expenses were charged to profit or loss till the
MEZZZEESHNER  BIRFTARBRE maturity of those contracts.
EI DN
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24. STEER T Boam)
DER&REH dZHEHBSHE)

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges
(Continued)

RBEBHR MESHAEEZRTE
EERREREHIETZRITER
20,557,000% 7t( #8 % 7159,711,000%

Included in bank borrowings as disclosed in note 25 were bank
loans of USD20,557,000 (equivalent to HK$159,711,000) and
HK$560,000,000 (31.12.2010: USD39,748,000 (equivalent to

Jt ) %560,000,000% t( =& — T F +
— B =+ — H :39,748,000% (48 %
74309,070,000 L)) MEZEBH &R
EHFTBETZ2AREHENCETERR

HK$309,070,000)) which were under cash flow hedges and the major
terms of the interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

mT

H{E Z#A WEGE R IRER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
w-——%+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2011

1,608,0003 7T —ZE-——_%—A+=H En—EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1278
US$1,608,000 13.1.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR* plus 0.6% 1.27%
2,661,000% 7T —E-—_f#=A+mWmA En—EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1218
US$2,661,000 14.3.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.21%
1,718,000% T —E-—HFMNA=+AH En—EA ZmBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.20/2
US$1,718,000 20.4.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.20%
1,736,000 7T —E—-—FAA+xAH En—EA ZmBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1188
US$1,736,000 16.5.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.18%
1,724,000 7T —E-—FERA=-+HA En—EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.19/8
US$1,724,000 25.5.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.19%
1,697,000 7T —E-—FRA=+hH En—EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1188
US$1,697,000 29.5.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.18%
3,514,000% 7T —ZE—_%3xA—H En—EA ZmBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1188
US$3,514,000 1.6.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.18%
2,640,000 7T —E-—FxA+=A En—EA ZmRBEIRTRZEFRE2M0.6E 1188
US$2,640,000 13.6.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.18%
1,457,000% 7T —E-—HtA=+H En—EA ZmBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.25E
US$1,457,000 30.7.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.25%
1,802,000 7T —E-—_H+tA=+A En—EA ZmBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 12218
US$1,802,000 30.7.2012 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.22%
50,000,0003& 7T —ZE-"FENA=+H BL=EAZEBRITRAERE 1.95/8
HK$50,000,000 30.9.2016 HK$ 3-month HIBOR** 1.95%
100,000,000 7T —E-RF-HA=+NA BL=EAZEBRITRAERE 2778
HK$100,000,000 29.1.2016 HK$ 3-month HIBOR 2.77%
200,000,000 7T —E-RFE=ZA=+=H BL=EAZEBRITRAERE 2. 708
HK$200,000,000 23.3.2016 HK$ 3-month HIBOR 2.70%
90,000,00038 7T —Z-~FMA+=H BL=EAZEBRITRAERE 2748
HK$90,000,000 12.4.2016 HK$ 3-month HIBOR 2.74%
60,000,00038 7T —Z-~FMA+=H BL=EAZEBRITRAERE 2228
HK$60,000,000 12.4.2016 HK$ 3-month HIBOR 2.22%
60,000,00038 7T —Z-"FRA++tH BRANEAZEBRITRAERS 2268
HK$60,000,000 17.5.2016 HK$ 6-month HIBOR 2.26%
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24. STEER T Eoam)
DER&REH dZHEHBESHE)

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges

(Continued)

HE A WEGE B SHEL
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-—ZT—2f£+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2010

1,550,000 7T —E——F=A=+—H En=EA 2mEIRITRIZEFREM1.09E 1.93E
USD1,550,000 21.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.09% 1.93%
4,600,0003 7T —E——F=A=+=H En=ER 2mERITRIZEREM1.09E 1.98/E
USD4,600,000 23.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.09% 1.98%
4,253,000 7T —E——F=A=+HH En—ER zmBURITRIZEFREM.5E 222
USD4,253,000 25.3.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 1.5% 2.22%
4,710,000% 7T —E——FmMANAH En=ER zmERITRIZEREM.29E 224
UsD4,710,000 8.4.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.29% 2.24%
3,000,000 7T —E——FmA+NA En—ER zmERITRIZEREM.75E 246
USD3,000,000 18.4.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 1.75% 2.46%
3,720,000% 7T —E——FMA=+xH En=ER 2mERITRIZEFRE M 642 2.66E
USD3,720,000 26.4.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.64% 2.66%
1,313,000% 7T —E——FRANH En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EMM0.6/E 1.28/2
UsD1,313,000 5.8.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.28%
2,026,000% 7T —E——FRA—H En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EMM0.6/E 1218
UsD2,026,000 1.9.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.21%
1,371,000% 7T —E——FRA=+H En—ER ZmBIRITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1.2212
UsD1,371,000 20.9.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.22%
3,450,000 7T —E——%t+A=+—H En=ER zmEIRITRIFEREM2.592 3.33E
USD3,450,000 21.10.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 2.59% 3.33%
1,492,000 7T —E——%t+A=+—H En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1.20/2
USD1,492,000 21.10.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.20%
2,889,000% T —E——%+—H=H En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1.20/2
USD2,889,000 2.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.20%
1,555,000 7T —E——%+—HA+tNH En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1.242
USD1,555,000 18.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.24%
2,397,000% 7T —E——%+—HA+tNH En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1.242
UsD2,397,000 18.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.24%
1,422,000% 7T —E——%+—-A=+ANH En—ER 2mBURITRIZEF EM0.6/E 1312
USD1,422,000 29.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.31%

R-ZZE-ZEF+ZA=+—H FERE
EHENIBERIPER-FAZRD

‘R

* LIBOR represents London Interbank Offered Rate.

**  HIBOR represents Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

as current with maturity date within one year.

At 31 December 2010, all interest rate swap contracts were classified
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24. STEER T Boam)

SEZHEH

AEBMBITIE THERHEN - R=F
——F+ZA=+—0 &S5z R
B2 8)$%18 25,498,000 TEE(=ZZ—
ZE+-ZH=+—H :5954,0008T)E
REZEAER - ZEENBABHARR
WRBAEHARBUZELEE - XEBE L
HEEH  EHEeHNREESERIEA
MAHZETRITER AEEREEEZ
—54 EELEREHERHMETSHE
ZEE - AEEFES-EHIEEZHEEY
SHEHTTREABEE2ER Bt &K
AHHEZEE R HEERNERBEH
ETHETESELZNREE  B&SF

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts

The Group entered into a number of foreign exchange forward
contracts. As at 31 December 2011, the change in fair value of
these contracts recorded a loss of HK$5,498,000 (31.12.2010:
HK$5,954,000) and was recognised in profit or loss. The majority
of these contracts are non-deliverable forward contracts and will be
settled in USD. Such contracts were entered into as part of the Group’s
treasury operation for the purpose of capturing the price differential
between the spot and forward foreign currency exchange markets by
entering into bank loan arrangements that were denominated in USD
with the similar amounts and maturity dates on a one by one basis.
Each of these arrangements, when contracted by the Group, will lock
in a pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation of
each of these foreign exchange forward contracts may give rise to

BRAREERRBANNIFHEEE R a gain or loss at a particular date within the term of the respective
HKEH o contract, such gain or loss will eventually be substantially offset by
each of these arrangements.

REEHR - ANEEEE 2 & RZXWINE
ERSHEESHENT

The ranges of the notional amounts of the major outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts to which the Group is committed at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

f| HA Ex
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
R-B——%+ZA=+-H

At 31 December 2011

£1,629,000% 7T —E-—F-A+=H 6.486E T/ AR
Buy USD1,629,000 13.1.2012 USD/RMBE6.486
B2,694,000% 7T —E2--#=A+mA 6.508% T,/ AR
Buy USD2,694,000 14.3.2012 USD/RMBE6.508
E1,739,000% 7T —E-“FMA=+H 6.410%/ AR
Buy USD1,739,000 20.4.2012 USD/RMBE6.410
£1,718,000% L &1,757,000% T —E-—FRA+ABEZE-ZFRA=T+AA 6.42626.437% L,/ AR#E
Buy USD1,718,000 to USD1,757,000 16.5.2012 t0 29.5.2012 USD/RMBE6.426 to 6.437
2,672,000 T E 3,687,000 7T —E-—EXA-BEZE-ZFxAt+=H 6.404%6 44155t/ AR
Buy USD2,672,000 to USD3,687,000 1.6.2012 t0 13.6.2012 USD/RMBE6.404 to 6.441
B1,477,000% 7T E4,733,000% 7T ZE-—£+A=AZE-E-ZftA=1A 6.406%6 4425 T,/ ARt
Buy USD1,477,000 to USD4,733,000 3.7.2012 10 30.7.2012 USD/RMBE6.406 to 6.442
1,695,000 T E3,939,000% 7T —E2-—#/\A=AZ=E--fN\At+-AH 6.38%6.39%6% T,/ ARE
Buy USD1,695,000 to USD3,939,000 3.8.2012t0 11.8.2012 USD/RMBE.38 t0 6.396
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24. fTHES®m T B 24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued
SMEEHEH(E) Foreign exchange forward contracts (Continued)
[ElE] ZHA Ex
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

RIE-Z2F+-A=1+—-H
At 31 December 2010

B1,581,000% 7t %4,692,000% T ZE-—§5ZAZ+-HEZZ-—-FZAZTEB  671026.717ER/ARY
Buy USD1,581,000 to USD4,692,000 21.3.2011 10 25.3.2011 USD/RMB6.710 t0 6.717
B3,076,000% 7t £4,816,000% 7T —E--FNANBEZE-—-FMAZ1E 6.66326.691%7T,/ AR
Buy USD3,076,000 to USD4,816,000 8.4.2011 10 26.4.2011 USD/RMB6.663 t0 6.691
B1,330,000% 7T —E2——%/\RER 6.728% 7,/ AR¥
Buy USD1,330,000 5.8.2011 USD/RMB6.728
B1,388,000% 7t %2,051,000% “E--ERA-BEZE--FRAZTH 6.65326.760% T,/ AR
Buy USD1,388,000 to USD2,051,000 1.9.2011 10 20.9.2011 USD/RMB6.653 to 6.760
B1,510,000% 7t %3,567,000% T —E-—-F+A=+-H 6.45426.478% T,/ AR
Buy USD1,510,000 to USD3,567,000 21.10.2011 USD/RMB6.454 t0 6.478
B1,441,000%7%2,924,000% 7T “E—F+-AZHEZE—S£+-AZtNBE  650126598ET/ ARE
Buy USD1,441,000 to USD2,924,000 2.11.2011 10 29.11.2011 USD/RMB6.501 to 6.598
AREBEBRWERE PETHEAINERT The Group does not currently designate any hedging relationship on
EBHRTIEEETEFRE o the foreign exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedging
accounting.

FRTAETENRARENE - RIEBEAR The above derivatives were measured at fair value. The classification
B E2ZH4E N-E——F+=-A= of the measurement of the above derivatives at 31 December 2011
+—BAR=-E-EF+-A=+—H=zst and 31 December 2010 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy. Level
EPBAE_H FE-_NAAEHNENR 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than
E—RANRERN BEESEBTE quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
Z(EER)SEEZBERITE)BRE or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
ABESBE - prices).
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/= .
25. RITEE 25. Bank Borrowings
—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRITER Bank loans 2,154,509 1,222,828
EBBZEEZBEEE  Discounted bills with recourse (note 21)
(FfF5E21) 4,924 13,374
2,159,433 1,236,202
BHEMA Secured 4,924 13,374
IR Unsecured 2,154,509 1,222,828
2,159,433 1,236,202
RITEEFR The borrowings are repayable as follows:
T EEEER
—FR Within one year 938,600 944,369
—FREMER More than one year but not exceeding two years 319,583 221,000
MEERZEEFR More than two years but not more than five years 901,250 70,833
2,159,433 1,236,202
W ER—FEREE Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
WBRNRRE current liabilities
BECEH (938,600) (944,369)
1,220,833 291,833
REBETMHWRITEEAFEFNEZHEBR Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings carry annual interests at the
1TRIZEARF EIN0.7 % R BB IRITRIZEF S M range of HIBOR plus 0.7% to HIBOR plus 1.1% and LIBOR plus 0.60%.
1.1% R @ BUR AT 245 2.110.60% ° F= Interest is repriced in the period from 1 month up to 12 months.
—RRBIEAZNEREE—X °
—B——F —E-EF
—A—HZE MA—RAZE
—B——F —E-EF
+=A=+—H +=A=+-—H
1.1.2011 1.4.2010
to to
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
SRS Effective interest rates
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 0.97% t0 2.10% 0.90% to 5.40%
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 1.07% t0 2.77%  1.00% to 3.33%
R 1TE EE$E557,889,0008B T (ZE—F Included in bank borrowings are HK$557,889,000 (31.12.2010:
F+=-H=+—H :530,132,000/87T) % HK$530,132,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the contractual
EEMBE  BRAHER—FEREIH- maturity dates within 1 year.
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25. Bank Borrowings (continued)

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated

in currency other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

E usD 315,925 315,828

26. ELEBIEERE

UTAXEBCRRAZTERLERESRS
(BE)RRAERLHRAEREEE :

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current year and

prior period:
RABEAZ
EBIE BERH
e BIE Withholding
Accelerated [ tax on
tax Tax undistributed Hity Foh
depreciation losses profits Others Total
TiExT FTER FTER TET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(=)
(Note)
RZZE-ZFEMAB—H  At1Aprl2010 2,339 (20) - 4,519 6,838
MELEER Currency realignment - - - 2 2
HBR(FTA) Charge (credit) to profit
B (M) or loss (note 11) 24 1 - (525) (283)
RZZ-ZF At 31 December 2010
+=ZA=1+-H 2,580 (19) - 3,996 6,557
(FtA) MerEH (Credit) charge to profit or
(BfFzE11) loss (note 11) (242) (18) 3,192 (641) 2,291
N-Z——F At 31 December 2011
+=ZA=+-H 2,338 (37) 3,192 3,355 8,848

MiE . AEEARRUBHELIBEAR
ERERREEE(ERLEE AL
WHERME  BERRE)MEEZE
EBIREME -

Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value
adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets, prepaid lease
payments and property, plant and equipment) on acquisition of

subsidiaries.
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26 ELEHEE B @)

REVNGSUBRRRME » B TELES
REEREECEYH D - BEMBRER
B BERBEEBRONAT ¢

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

—B——F —E-FF

2011 2010

FixT FBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 8,848 6,557

RZB——F+=ZA=+—-H0 A£EEF
RE AR EE#529,687,0008 T (==
—Z=F+ZA=-+—H 450,113,000/
T0) AR SR R R c M= T ——F+=
B=+—08 CEIZ-EBHBLAHRE
KE518222,0008 t(ZE—ZEF+=-A=+
—HB : 115,000 ) EAREE QT 2 G
MRBEZERBENAEEHBEEE - ARK
BETEHIRRAVATIRE  BURERART
529,465,0008 T (—ZE—ZEF+=-/A =+
— H :449,998,000/& T ) IR BE & -
RIERB BB HEP461,943,000/8 7T (=
ZE—ZFF+=-A=+—H : 370,899,000/
TU) AR EAAAE BN T —RER
ZATRIER o

AEECREFEFHFELT RGP E
MBARE-ZZENE—H— BREHN
HEFIR DR BB B AT KD E
RAERIELERIE c IR EAREEERRK
ERDIRBERS%E10%N R REMTER
Bloe ANESTRATEETEFRED YR
ZRMNEGR > MERERRABREARA
BEAERE RAKETERPEMEL
ABE-ZETNE—F—HEEHRIMET
KRE D TRIR B % F1,286,786,00058 7T (=
T—ZTF+_-F=+—H :1,150,726,000
BT ) ERIEERIIE o

BRAR —B——FEFR

At 31 December 2011, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$529,687,000 (31.12.2010: HK$450,113,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2011,
a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$222,000
(31.12.2010: HK$115,000) of such losses from a Hong Kong subsidiary
which set off with taxable temporary differences of the relevant group
entity. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$529,465,000(31.12.2010: HK$449,998,000)dueto the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
tax losses, HK$461,943,000 (31.12.2010: HK$370,899,000) may be
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at
various dates up to and including 2016.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries has been
recognised taking into accounts the dividends to be distributed from
profits earned by certain subsidiaries in Mainland China starting from
1 January 2008 under the Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law of Mainland China that requires withholding tax with tax rate
ranging from 5% to 10% upon the distribution of such profits to the
shareholders. Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the subsidiaries
in the Mainland China starting from 1 January 2008 amounting to
HK$1,286,786,000 (31.12.2010: HK$1,150,726,000) as the directors
are of the opinion that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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27. Share Capital

EE

Authorised

—5-——%

+=ZA=+—8K ERITRHE
—E-FF Issued and fully paid

+=BA=+—H —E——F —E-TF
31.122011& +=H=+—H +=A=+—H8
31.12.2010 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
FET FTET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SIRMEEO. 108t 21 Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 55,515 55,304

F/PRAADRAZEBITRABUTEE:

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the

year/period are as follows:

BB
Number ot |
of shares Amount
T FEx
‘000 HK$'000
N-ZE-ZSFWNA—H At 1 April 2010 544,134 54,413
ITEBRRE (FfFa) Exercise of share options (note a) 8,903 891
R-E-—FF At 31 December 2010
+=ZA=+—H 553,037 55,304
TEMERRRE (FisEb) Exercise of share options (note b) 2,114 211
HN—E——%F At 31 December 2011
+=ZA=+—AH 555,151 55,515
B EE - Notes:

(a)

R-E-ZENA-AZE_T-FF+=
BA=+—HHIAE » #758,903,0008% < iE A%
FERETTME » AND B R L5 51347800,000
% ~375,0008% ~ 536,0008% - 2,366,0008%
1,086,000 % 3,740,0008% & A% ™ f50.10
BTz BREEDFIR1.1908 T
1.590587T ~ 2.00458 7T ~ 4.0505 7T ~ 1.950
BT RA.5368TT ©

RBE-Z——F+=-A=+—-HLHEF
B H£482,114,000/ 2 BB EETE > K
A& A Itk 2 Bl % 17300,0008% ~ 230,000
% ~ 608,0008% ~ 240,0008% 5 736,0000% F
BREEC10BTZRG  SREEDI A
1.590/8 7T * 2.00458 7T ~ 4.050387T ~ 1.950
BTR4.536/8 T °

FBECRTROVEMBIEEERZH
BRHEEREEER

(a) During the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010, 8,903,000
share options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 800,000 shares,
375,000 shares, 536,000 shares, 2,366,000 shares, 1,086,000 shares
and 3,740,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of
HK$1.190, HK$1.590, HK$2.004, HK$4.050, HK$1.950 and HK$4.536

per share respectively.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2011, 2,114,000 share options
were exercised, resulting in the issue of 300,000 shares, 230,000 shares,
608,000 shares, 240,000 shares and 736,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price of HK$1.590, HK$2.004, HK$4.050, HK$1.950
and HK$4.536 per share respectively.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue

in all respects.
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29.

EXEREEBREBE

FEEERHEARURRBBE/CEREA
RAGEHRRFNESEEK - FAEEH
DEEHFELE - AREEEBRRE
BEBFFEMR o

FEBzERERBEEY  TEARNK
H2SWBEZRITEERFARRREGRE
H(EERITREARBREFEREEFR)

RRBEBSEHERELEE - FRER
— 80 ARRNEEKERELARARE
BEANER  REZEZ BBXTR
B BOHBRRBTHEINEEQREE
B UTPEAEEBRELRER -

28.

Capital Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which mainly
include the bank borrowings disclosed in note 25, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

S@MIA 29. Financial Instruments
&R T AR Categories of financial instruments
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FTHExT FHExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HMBEE Financial assets
ERREWER Loans and receivables (including cash and

(BERER cash equivalents)

REEEER) 3,819,993 2,955,463
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 23,167 22,200
HBAR Financial liabilities
AR A Amortised cost 3,327,575 2,187,140
THESRTIA Derivative financial instruments at fair

RARBEFTABRE value through profit or loss 2,727 5,487
THESRTIA Derivative financial instruments

BEFEHPZITA designated as hedging instruments 11,120 2,290

BRAR —B——FEFR
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FEBSRTABERRERRERE
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SME RS
RRTFETHEB AR UIMNSETHER R
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HSHELFHBEEB AR LR IIE -
MA74% W RBUEREE D RIMNIIEE
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KEBETIETFHEEREH - LU
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's financial instruments include trade and bills receivables,
other debtors, derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale
investment, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
creditors and bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to market risk or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 6% of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 74% of purchases are denominated in
the relevant group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. During the year, the Group has entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its exposure
to potential variability of foreign currency risk arising from changes in
foreign exchange exposure in USD denominated bank borrowings.
The management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
should the need arise.
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AT B 1R B IR B3R ()

wEmER (1E)

SMNER SR ()

BREDN

AEBXTEEHET ARBERBINE
WER o TRHFMAEEAT 2GR
HAREIMNET B E% (ZE—FF+ A=
T—H 5%)MNBRE 5% (ZE—FF
TZA=+—H :5%) BEEBYHIINERE
RUgEHB 2 AESENTE -  HBED
MEEEREELUIINETENEBIER
HEKRERS% (ZE—FF+="A=+—
B :5%)2BELBEAZ FBEINE
ERWIRF R RN - SRIT4A R - B
RRRIRITEE - EFEENEET T
FIEHIENREEN HAEBEE B HES% (=
E—ZFF+_HA=+—H :5%)8  KH
BERE PTG MEFEENBETA
R - BMEEREZHEBERNRS% (=%
—ZEF+Z"A=1+—8 :5%) 8 FHK
BERFERSHERNWEE -

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD, RMB and Hong
Kong dollars. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (31.12.2010: 5%) increase and decrease in functional currency
of respective group entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (31.12.2010: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% (31.12.2010: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade and bills
receivables, bank balances, creditors as well as bank borrowings. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit after taxation
where functional currency strengthens 5% (31.12.2010: 5%) against
the relevant foreign currency for net liability position and vice versa.
Fora 5% (31.12.2010: 5%) weakening of functional currency against
the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit after taxation.

—EB——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FHET FExT

HK$'000 HK$'000

E3 usD 25,702 19,995
ARHE RVB 13 1,712
BT Hong Kong dollars (358) (230)

P FE D TR IE IR S
BEARINEEEMIE  AEBEREMELH
ERE EARBHAEBEEEHS% (=%
—ZF+-A=1+—H:5%)K  £KE
BREL &3 RS 1 045,011,0008 T (=& —
ZENA-HAE=Z-ZEHF+=-A=+—
B :32,621,000%7)  RZABRAEHEK
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The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the amounts
due from/to group entities, which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
When RMB strengthens 5% (31.12.2010: 5%) against the relevant
foreign currency, profit after taxation of the Group will increase by
HK$45,011,000 (1.4.2010 to 31.12.2010: HK$32,621,000) and vice
versa.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure on the foreign exchange
forward contracts is disclosed in other price risk of this note.
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29. @I E@ 29. Financial Instruments (continued)

MEREEEEFEBEE) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

G m R () Market risk (Continued)
FIE R fE Interest rate risk
AEBEMHHESRTERRRITEE The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
FIEEZAABEINRER(ZEEEFER rate bank deposits and bank borrowings (see note 25 for details of
FMizE25) o BRERITFRR KEBHESIRIT these borrowings). However, since the bank deposits and the majority
BEKR—FREE EEERALER of the fixed-rate bank borrowings will mature within one year, the
MU REAEEBREATE - management considers the risk is insignificant to the Group.
AEBIRRILRITHSERRRT 2HRIT The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
ERRZERTEEMHRESRENEEK bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market deposit rate and
(FERMF22K25) - BEFAEE 2R floating-rate bank borrowings (see notes 22 and 25 for details). In
TEERBEERZE » REERI L FIREHLL order to keep the Group’s bank borrowings at fixed rates, the Group
HHMHORTEERERSB AR - ZZ entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against its exposures to
FlZ e B P IRIT B B 2 = ERFAE changes in cash flows of certain bank borrowings. The critical terms
B MEBHDIEEABNZEHPIA I of these interest rate swaps are the same to those of hedged bank
SRS A (B RMIEE24) © borrowings. Interest rate swaps are designated as effective hedging

instruments and hedge accounting is used (see note 24 for details).

ARERARBITHESGZRITTERNER The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow interest rate
B AEBZRITAKAERSREFNER risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
ko BERA  HRFTEMRITASRZEIE bank balances. The directors consider the Group’s exposure of the
HERE SHAKEIR=EAZHZE short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less than three
HIRTERRRITESREYE 2 FIZRR months and bank balances to interest rate risk is not significant as
WREKR  WABERABRBEDINH - interest bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and

thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.

BUBE 5T Sensitivity analysis

THSBRED NI AREAREFTET The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
BrFERBEE RER=EAZIHD exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
ZEERTERRBRITEEREZD 7 the reporting period. For interest bearing bank deposits with original
DBRERBEHRREBEEERERRS maturity of more than three months and bank borrowings, the analysis
HAREE - AL T RES0EMF (=2 — is prepared assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
ZHE+-ZA=+—H :S0@EHTF)  HER at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
EEEHANR S ENEE 2 @5TE period. A 50 basis points (31.12.2010: 50 basis points) increase or
i o decrease is used which represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Mzt ERTEE(TEEBERSREFHN If interest rates on interest bearing bank borrowings (excluding bank
719,711,000 T ZSRITER(ZE—ZF+ loans under cash flow hedges of HK$719,711,000 (31.12.2010:
ZA=+—H 309,070,000 ) KR EZR HK$309,070,000)) and short-term bank deposits with original maturity
ZEABAMERRITERNE LA of more than three months had been 50 basis points (31.12.2010: 50
THOEHF(ZE—FF+=A=1+— basis points) higher/lower and all of other variables were held constant,
H :50fE%F)  MABHMEZTE  ® the profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2011 would
BE_Z——F+-A=1t—HLFENR decrease/increase by approximately HK$1,799,000 (1.4.2010 to
BBERIGRD, 18 IN%91,799,000/8 7T (= 31.12.2010: decrease/increase by approximately HK$395,000). This
ZEZ-ZEFNA-HBE-Z-ZEF+-A=+ is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
—B D EN#I395,0008T) o WEE its interest bearing short-term bank deposits and variable-rate bank
HERETEEARZGHEERRITERRZE borrowings which are not hedged against their exposures to cash
IRITIEEZFIRAR » ERREERIL TE flow interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.

RS 2 R EREBR R o
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29. €I B
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its derivative financial
instruments. The Group's other price risk is mainly concentrated on
the interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure
to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the reporting period:

o if the forward exchange rate of foreign exchange forward
contracts had been 5% (31.12.2010: 5%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the profit after taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2011 would increase/decrease by
HK$7,041,000 (1.4.2010 to 31.12.2010: increase/decrease by
HK$13,515,000);

° if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap contracts had
been 50 basis points (31.12.2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the debit side of
hedging reserve would decrease/increase by HK$8,467,000
(1.4.2010 to 31.12.2010: increase/decrease HK$792,000) as a
result of fair value change on interest rate swap contracts.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
perform an obligation by the counterparties are arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated the responsible personnel for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group'’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the Group has
procedures and policies in place to ensure they are from banks or rural
cooperative banks with acceptable credit quality.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are mainly banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and bills
receivables mainly from banks with good reputation in Mainland
China, the Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk on trade and other debtors. Trade receivables consist of
a large number of customers, which spread across diverse industries
and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had available unutilised
bank borrowings facilities of approximately HK$1,453,431,000
(31.12.2010: HK$1,172,119,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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29. €W T B ) 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
MEREEEBREREZ) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
SEmER (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TEE 2 RFFEE R Liquidity and interest risk tables
-EUEE WENLE  ANFEER
EFY -BANL TREME ETEBREIE RERELE
Filk: BFBB—%F  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted —-fBAR Tmonth  1yearbut 2yearsbut contractual REE
average Less than to ess than less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1 year 2 years Syears  cash flows amount
E TET TER TERL T TEx TEx
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
pZB——F+ZAZ+-0 At31.122011
FIEMBRE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ERERR Creditors and
Hit R other payables - 594,434 571,308 2,400 - 1,168,142 1,168,142
RITERH Bank loans
58 - at variable rate 172 22,525 361,450 328,534 954,536 1,667,045 1,601,544
-ER - at fixed rate 1.52 446,376 113,084 - - 559,460 557,889
1,063,335 1,045,842 330,934 954,536 3,394,647 3,327,575
fIEIR-BERH Derivatives - net settlement
HEBHEH Foreign exchange
forward contracts 455 2,272 - - 2,721 2,727
fIEIA-BERE Derivatives - gross settlement
FISEREBEH Interest rate swap contracts
-HA -~ inflow 442 4,369 4,031 4,239 13,081 12,378
- -outflow 811 8,242 7,734 8,049 24,836 23,498
369 3,873 3,703 3,810 11,755 11,120
RZS-ZF+ZA=+-0 At31.12.2010
FIEMBRE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
B EHRH AR Creditors and
other payables - 652,587 297,292 - - 949,879 949,879
RITERH Bank loans
-38 - atvariable rate 153 10,908 410,865 223,260 71,068 716,101 706,070
-ER - at fixed rate mn 523,49 7,065 - - 530,561 530,132
BITEL Bank overdrafts 1,059 - - - 1,059 1,059
1,188,050 715,222 223,260 71,068 2,197,600 2,187,140
fiEIR Derivatives -
- BERE net settlement
MERBEH Foreign exchange
forward contracts - 5,487 - - 5,487 5,487
fiEIR Derivatives -
-HEgE gross settlement
FIEEHEY Interest rate swap contracts
-HA - inflow 319 1,757 - - 2,076 2,041
- -outflow 734 3,668 - - 4,402 4,331
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

. the fair values of derivative financial instruments of foreign
exchange forward contracts are measured at fair values by
reference to quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates matching remaining
maturities of the contracts;

. the fair values of derivative financial instruments of interest rate
swap contracts are measured at the present value of future cash
flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates; and

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative financial instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.
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30. R RS E 30. Share Option Scheme
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On 3 September 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the "Existing Scheme”), which will expire on 2 September 2012, in
order to comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The purpose of the
Existing Scheme is to recognise and motivate the participants and
to provide incentives and a direct economic interest in attaining the
long term business objectives of the Company. Under the Existing
Scheme, the directors may grant options to any eligible employees
of the Group, including directors of the Company or its subsidiaries,
legal, financial, management and technical advisers and consultants,
major customers and raw material and machinery suppliers of the
Group, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Options granted
are exercisable within ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 28 days after the date of
offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of options. The subscription price of the option share is not
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Existing Scheme may not
exceed in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the Existing Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding shares options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital from time to time. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

The share options granted vest immediately. No options were granted
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the prior period from 1
April 2010 to 31 December 2010.
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30. B AR RS &l ) 30. Share Option Scheme (continued)
AARZBEREFEZHRITEEREZ A summary of the movements of the outstanding options and their
BERHAEAEZMEFITEERESER related weighted average exercise prices during each of the reporting
HHARBHOT - periods under the Company’s share option scheme is as follows:

EREsE
Number of share options
R=B--% W=B--F
-B-H t=A=1-H

RHAH e HAGE FACTE FACHE  HAGE
Outstanding ~ Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding

Date Exercise at during during at
of grant price.  1.1.2011  theyear  theyear 31.12.2011
BT
HK$
RiTatel Existing Scheme “ZINERR+LA 1590 700,000 300,000 - 400,000
17.5.2004
“ZZRETACTMA 2004 906000 230,000 - 676,000
24.10.2005
“ETLEMAZA 4050 1562000 608,000 - 954,000
34,2007
“EE\EtA=1-H 1950 990,000 240,000 - 750,000
31.10.2008
“ETNETRER 4536 2724000 736,000 - 1,988,000
5.10.2009

6,882,000 2,114,000 - 4,768,000

B - BT kb

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
MEFIERITHEE Weighted average exercise
price per share 3.421 3.409 N/A 3.426
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30. IERRREST 8 @)

30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

ERERA
Number of share options
RZZ-ZF RZB-%%
mA—-A +ZA=1+-A
RHBH TRE HATR HRETE BRcHEE  HAGE
Outstanding Exercised  Cancelled  Outstanding
Date Exercise at during during at
of grant price 142010  theperiod  theperiod 31.12.2010
B
HKS
BiTHE Existing Scheme “EE-E+-F1MA 1190 800,000 800,000 - -
14.11.2002
“EEMERATLA 1590 1,075,000 375,000 - 700,000
17.5.2004
“ERRFTASTRA 2004 1442000 536,000 - 906,000
24.10.2005
“ETtEMA=A 4050 3,954,000 2,366,000 26,000 1,562,000
34.2007
ZEEN\FTA=T-H 1950 2,076,000 1,086,000 - 990,000
31.10.2008
“EENETAEH 4536 6464000 3,740,000 - 2,724,000
5.10.2009
15,811,000 8,903,000 26,000 6,882,000
B B B B
HKS HKS HKS HKS
MEFIERITHEE Weighted average exercise
price per share 3.474 3.514 4.050 3.421

BHBERU CERRAESHABRE

Details of the options held by the directors included in the above table

ZHFEWT are as follows:
BREZE
Number of share options
R-B——-F R=B——F
—RA—H +=BA=+-H
HARITE FRETE i RATEE
B A#  f7FEE Outstanding  Exercised Outstanding
Date Exercise at during at
of grant price 1.1.201 theyear 31.12.2011
BT
HK$
BiTHE Existing Scheme —ZEMERA++HH 1.590 700,000 300,000 400,000
17.5.2004
—EERFTAZTOA 2.004 600,000 200,000 400,000
24.10.2005
—ZETtHEMA=H 4.050 600,000 200,000 400,000
3.4.2007
“EZNFtA=+—H 1.950 400,000 100,000 300,000
31.10.2008
ZETNETARR 4.536 800,000 200,000 600,000
5.10.2009
3,100,000 1,000,000 2,100,000
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30. BBARAEST 8w 30. Share Option Scheme (continued)
BREHE
Number of share options

RZZ—ZF R-Z-—ZF

mA—A +=A=1+-H

ERITE  HRETE i RATHE

FHAH 7@ Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding

Date  Exercise at during at

of grant price 1.4.2010 the period  31.12.2010

BT
HK$

BiTstaEl Existing Scheme  —EE-F+-—A+MA 1.190 700,000 700,000 -
14.11.2002

—ZZNFERA+ER 1.590 700,000 - 700,000
17.5.2004

“EZEFTAZTIA 2.004 600,000 - 600,000
24.10.2005

—ZZ+FMA=A 4.050 600,000 - 600,000
3.4.2007

—EENFt+A=+—H 1.950 400,000 - 400,000
31.10.2008

“EZNFTHREAA 4536 1,000,000 200,000 800,000
5.10.2009

4,000,000 900,000 3,100,000

BE-Z——F+-A=+—HLEFEER
TIEBRE R M MEF I REH9.18378
T ZE-EFNA-HE-_Z—ZF+=
B=+—H:788587) REZEHAMK
TEBEBREZFHORGBENERAR6.10F
(ZE—ZFF+-A=+—H :6.99F) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise of share
options during the year ended 31 December 2011 was HK$9.183
(1.4.2010t0 31.12.2010: HK$7.885). The options outstanding at the
end of the year have a weighted average remaining contract life of
6.10 years (31.12.2010: 6.99 years).

31. A&iE 31. Commitments
—E——F —E-ZF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BRAWEYE MEX  Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of
REZEREX property, plant and equipment
— B NBHREHT — contracted for but not provided in the
MEPARTFEE consolidated financial statements 135,261 48,780
—BEREERTY — authorised but not contracted for 489,367 602,510
BEARE LI Expenditure in respect of the
FERAEZRAX additions of land use rights
- BRI NBHGREHHK — contracted for but not provided in the
WMEPRTRE consolidated financial statements 5,069 107,848
—EREERITH — authorised but not contracted for - 145,000
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32. EEMAESE 32. Operating Lease Commitments
XEEEBABA The Group as lessee
RB|ERR > AEERRTIEHRERZ At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
HEMEZ T AEEE XA ™M ARER commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
RRRBRERERE ! cancellable operating leases in respect of rented properties which fall

due as follows:

—E——F —E-EF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 16,946 10,029
E_EERF In the second to fifth year inclusive
(ERMEEREER) 58,352 27,812
HF# After five years 68,983 33,897
144,281 71,738
BIBEAEET L 2B HERRKHE Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms and
EH—FE-TFEEHELE - rentals are fixed from one year to twenty years.
3B EBMALRS 33. Related Party Transactions
FR - AEEDBIEZ4960,0008T(=F During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$960,000 (1.4.2010 to
—ZEFNMA-BE=-_ZE-FF+=-HA=1+ 31.12.2010: HK$720,000) and HK$600,000(1.4.2010t031.12.2010:
— B : 720,000 7t ) &600,000& T (=& HK$450,000) to Goldex Investments Limited (“Goldex”) and Galsheer
—ZEENA—-RE=ZE-BF+=-A=+ Investments Limited (“Galsheer”) respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi
—H 450,000 ) 2B FHBERER Shing and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, directors of the Company, have controlling
RAR(BENREEREERAT(E interests over Goldex and Galsheer respectively.
B ARAZEESETHEEREFH
EEDRNBERERISEERES °
FEEBABARQAZESERSVEHE The key management personnel are the directors and the five highest
BAE o REHM 2 FBHAMIEET o paid individuals of the Company. The details of the remuneration paid

to them are set out in note 7.
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34. BRIKBERIFTE 34. Retirement Benefit Plan
AEBESHEREBERKGTERAZTRLZ The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
EREMAFE((HERAGE ) RIBER is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
BERHIR—ZSTEF+_ARLzEE (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
StEI((EEEED - ZEHEZEE “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
HASECEESBIEE  AZRAEE Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
ZEAESMIFE - ERBESFHERLZ separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
Bl RABERAKGEKBEZEETEE trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
BESEBERNGTEIEZRE S to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
g ER-ZEEEFE+-A—BZHNUE staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
FABAEECZEEFSHEREETTE - whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December

2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

AATRPEXREZHEBAREETIHS The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
BB EEZBEREERKERNGTEIZK members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by
B -HEHNBRARAZERARESFEZE the government of Mainland China. The subsidiaries are required to
FTastk  EFAZERERFEZES - contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
AEBzE-STARZRKER SR benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
HASTERMHK o with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified

contributions.

T ABE 2R 533,334,000 T (=8 — The costs charged to profit or loss of HK$33,334,000 (1.4.2010 to
EEMA-HEZE—ZEF+-A=+— 31.12.2010: HK$19,104,000) represent contributions paid or payable
H : 19,104,000/ T ) X R AL B &5 E to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans
FRAFTAZ L RERZEFEMEL 24 in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31 December 2011,
BRzHR e R=2——F+ZA=+— contributions of HK$501,000 (31.12.2010: HK$318,000) due in
B - B3RS H BB 2 FK501,000% 7T respect of the reporting period had not been paid over to the plans.
(ZB—ZF+=-A=+—H : 318,000/8 The amounts were paid over subsequent to the end of the reporting
TNRAFZETE - ZEREERRE period.
HRBZAT -

35. WEEK B A R RRIMER 35. Acquisition of Additional Interest in a

Subsidiary

FR - RNEBLIR S E16,000,000% T During the year, the Group acquired an additional 40% equity capital
KEBERXRAKELFERAIBA(TERARTFED of Yip's Pacific Limited (“Yip's Pacific”) for a cash consideration of
FEMONRARER A FRKIEBESE HK$16,000,000 and then Yip's Pacific became a wholly-owned
BRATEEBCZZEWNBAR - EXKAF subsidiary of the Group after the acquisition. The difference of
FE 2 JE 4% IR %5 §8 %19,285,0007% T &2 HK$3,285,000 between the adjustment to non-controlling interests
X, f816,000,0005% Jt [ 2 % %83,285,000 of Yip’s Pacific amounting to HK$19,285,000 and the purchase
BLOHEREZRBER  mARIMEE consideration of HK$16,000,000 has been recognised directly in
KRAFFHERERFEABCELEZH equity and the translation difference of HK$8,384,000 included in
8,384,000/ jt E E R E AR N B IR RFE(LE the carrying value of the non-controlling interests of Yip's Pacific
HEE - FREF18{E16,000,00058 5T was transferred to translation reserve attributable to owners of
213,600,000 T » REEHR_Z—=F the Company. HK$13,600,000 out of the purchase consideration
RAXM  MAERFRBESE - HK$16,000,000 has been paid during the year and the remaining

balance will be settled in June 2013 and is therefore classified as non-
current liabilities.
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RE SR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. TEHEAE 36. Principal Subsidiaries
BRRZFEMBARZFBNOT ¢ Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
AEBRERECRARE/
BRTRE/ HRERZESY
AL/ HREREE Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AAER incorporation/ issued share capitall share capitallregistered TTER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
e S
2011 2010
RERRERAR B4 LER-257 100% 00%  NXRE
Base Rich Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Property investment
ZHER (LB) BRLT HEAE- BAEH- 100% - BEREERAREH
BEMELE 40,800,000%7
Bauhinia Coatings Manufacturing Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacturing of and trading
(Shanghai) Co., Limited - wholly owned USD40,800,000 in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
Bauhinia Paints Limted KBRIES EER- 100087 100% 0%  REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$1,000 Investment holding
LHTER (RY) BRLF HEIRE - BrEH- 100% 100%  BEREEANREH
BahErx 28,000,000\ %
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
(Chengdu) Company Limited - wholly owned RMB28,000,000 in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
RbERERAE B EER- 0% 100% 100%  BEAHREH
LR -600,00037C HizE(o) HizE(b)
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$20 note (o) note(o)  Trading in solvents and
Deferred - HK$600,000 coatings
LATER (1§ BRAT HEIKRE - BrEH- 100% 100%  BEREEAHREH
BENELE 6,100,000% 7
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
(Shanghai) Company Limited - wholly owned USD6,100,000 in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
LHTER (1B BRAF HEIRRE- BrEH- 100% 00%  HEREEAHREH
BENELE 16,000,007
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
(Shantou) Co,, Ltd. - wholly owned HK$16,000,000 in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
LATER (R BRAT HERE BrEH- 100% 100%  HEREEAHREH
-BENELE 28,800,000% 7
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
(Shenzhen) Company Limited - wholly owned HK$28,800,000 in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
Bauhinia Paints (Thailand) %6 EIR-250,0008 49% a9%  NERE
Manufacturing Limited Thailand Ordinary - MizHa) Hzka)
Baht 250,000 note () note(s)  Property investment
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A B IR &M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. TEMBEA T 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
AEBBERECRARE/
BRARE/ ARERZ R
A/ HMER2ER Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AER incorporation/ issued share capital/ share capitallregistered TEER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
Z2--f  CR-%F
2011 2010
RERE (1) BRAT hEKE BRER- 100% 00%  BEREERH
-BEELE 38,000,000 A R
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Chemical (Hebei) Limited - wholly owned RMB38,000,000 in coatings
foreign enterprise
REHBE (D) BRAT hEKE BRER- 100% 00%  BEREERH
-BEELE 15,000,000%7
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Chemicals (Zhejiang) Limited - wholly owned USD15,000,000 in coatings
foreign enterprise
REHBE (L) BRAT hEKE BRER- 100% 00%  BEREERH
-BEELE 170,000000%7
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
(Zhongshan) Limited - wholly owned HK$170,000,000 in coatings
foreign enterprise
RS ERMAERLT B4 LEk-25n 100% 100%  EEEER
Best Lubricant Blending Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Trading in lubricants
REREERAE B EER-10000%7 100% 0%  HERE
Big Youth Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 Property investment
Bt TRRERAR B4 EER-160000%7 75% % REER
Concord Chemical Storaging Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$160,000 Investment holding
KEHE (BN BRAR E BrEH- 100% 0%  BEREEZH
-BEhEk% 24,500,000%7
Da Chang Polymers (Huizhou) Limited Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
- wholly owned HK$24,500,000 in coatings
foreign enterprise
EECXEREARE (R) E BrEH- 100% 100%  LEEEREARY
ARAT -BEhEk% 23,000,000%7
Dao Ming Business Management Mainland China Capital contribution - Corporate management and
Consultancy Service (Shenzhen) - wholly owned HK$23,000,000 consultation services
Company Limited foreign enterprise
REEELIARAR E BrEH- 100% 0%  BEREERHRZH
-BEhEk% 10,000,000 7
Dongguan Hang Cheung Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading in
Petrochemical Limited - wholly owned HK$10,000,000 solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
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36. TEM B AT @)

RE SR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AERRERECRARE/
BEfIRE/ dfErzEl
AY/E e ek ER Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AR incorporation/ issued share capital/ share capitallregstered TEER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
2§ C3-Ff
2011 2010
RRATAEEERRERLT LEY: BREH- 100% 0%  HEREEEEHR
Dongguan Pacol Lubricant -BENELE 50,000,000/ 7
Company Limited Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading in
- wholly owned HK$50,000,000 lubricants
foreign enterprise
EHERLT 2 LER-257 100% 00%  N%RE
Goldchain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Property investment
EERRLT EED EER- 120 100% 0%  REER
Great Success Limited Samoa Ordinary - USD1 Investment holding
RECIRRERAR 2 LR -60000057 100% 00%  REER
Handsome Chemical Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$600,000 Investment holding
Development Limited
RELIRBEERAR 3 ZER-60,000%7 100% 0%  REAEEHR
Handsome Chemical Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$60,000 Provision of treasury services
EE2H () BRAR LEY: BrEH- 100% 0%  BEREERAHRZH
-BehEr% 13900,000% 7
Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading in
(Hui Yang) Limited - wholly owned USD13,900,000 solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
B2 (FI) BRAR LEY: BrEH- 100% 0%  BEREERAHRZH
-BehEr% 2300000027
Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading in
(Zhejiang) Limited - wholly owned USD23,000,000 solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise
Hang Cheung Petrochemical RBRLEE LER-1%0 100% 100%  REER
(International) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 Investment holding
ERRRLIERAR 3 EER-800000%7 100% 0%  BEREERHREH
Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$800,000 Manufacture of and trading
in solvents and coatings
EERBRINERAR R ERR-2ET 100% 100%  REREHREH
Hang Cheung Procurement & Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Merchandising of solvents and
Logistics Limited coatings
Hang Cheung (WS, Limited BED EEBR-13%T 100% 100%  REER
Samoa Ordinary - USD1 Investment holding
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36. TEME AT #)

A B IR &M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AERRERECRARE/
BRARE/ dfErzEsl
AT/ ek ER Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AR incorporation/ issued share capital/ share capitallregistered TETER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
2-f C3-Ff
2011 2010
BRZHTHE (KPE) BRAT B4 LR - 14966557 100% 100%  REER
BER-335%7 iz (o) E)
Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$149,665 note (b) note(b)  Investment holding
Manufacturing (Greater China) Deferred - HK$335
Company Limited
BMEELIERAR HEAE-BENELE BREH- 75% 5% BEREERE
15,000,000 A%
Huizhou Shengda Chemical Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Company Limited - wholly owned RMB15,000,000 in solvents
foreign enterprise
IMRECIRRERAA TEAE-RERELE BREH- 75% 5% BEREERY
149,800,007
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Development Limited - equity joint venture HK$149,800,000 in solvents
IFRHREERERLT hEIRE - BENELE BRER- 5% % REREERY
53,000,007
Jiangmen Thansome Solvents Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Production Limited - wholly owned HK$53,000,000 in solvents
foreign enterprise
RPERAERAE B4 EER-290000%7 100% 60%  HEREEDRR
Pacific Oil & Chemical Hong Kong Ordinary - Manufacture of and trading
Company Limited HK$290,000 inlubricants
ATEREERAERAE 3 EER-10000%7 100% 60%  HERREEER
Pacific Special-Lube Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 Manufacture of and trading
in lubricants
Primer Limited EEE LER-1%0 100% 00%  REER
Samoa Ordinary - USD1 Investment holding
Prophet Investments Limited ABRAES LER-1%7T 100% 00%  REBR
Britsh Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 Investment holding
LEESERERAR HEIRE BREE- 100% 100%  EEREH
-BehEts 250,000%7
Shanghai Pacoil Special Mainland China Capital contribution - Trading in lubricants
Lube Co,, Limited - wholly owned USD250,000
foreign enterprise
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36. TEMEA T #)

A B IR & MiEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AERBERECRARE/
B&AkS/ dfErzERl
A/ HMER2ER Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AR incorporation/ issued share capital/ share capitallregstered TETER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
s8--5 33
2011 2010
RS HERERLT HERE BREE- 100% 100%  EEREH
-BENELE 1,000,000 A K&
Shenzhen Best Lubricant Mainland China Capital contribution - Trading in lubricants
Blending Limited - wholly owned RMB1,000,000
domestic enterprise
RESTIEIXERAA LEY: BrEH- 75% 5% BEREERE
-BENELE 42,000,000%7
Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Industry Company Limited - wholly owned HK$42,000,000 in solvents
foreign enterprise
REATEERERLT LEY: BrEH- 100% 00%  BEREEEEHR
-BENELE 8,400,000%7
Tianjin Best Lubricant Blending Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading
Co, Limited - wholly owned HK$8,400,000 in lubricants
foreign enterprise
TM Holding (Hong Kong) Limited - EBR-2ET 100% 00%  HEHE
Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Holding of trade mark
™ Holding Limited ABRIES LER- 15T 100% 00%  HE@E
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$1 Holding of trade mark
ERARIR (AR RBERY) 2 LER- 100% 100%  BERERMAES
BRAT 10000038 BAEEERROH
Totalle Procurement Logistics Macau Ordinary - Commercial and services agents, overseas
(Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited MOP100,000 selling activities and back offices
Yips Chemical (BVI) Limited ABRLES ERR-500%7 100% 00%  REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$500 Investment holding
ERfES (£8) ARAF 3 EBER-999,500%7 100% 100%  REBRRIRSH
BER-500%7 Kz (b) R
Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$999,500 note (b) note(o)  Investment holding and
Deferred - HK$500 provision of services
ERTXERERAR B4 ZER-10000%7 100% 00%  REER
Yip's Industrial Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 Investment holding
ERMEARLA B ERR- 20087 100% 100%  BEE%H
Yip's Ink and Chemicals Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$200 Trading in coatings
Company Limited
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A BIE IR & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36. TEME AT @ 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
AERBERECRARE/
BEfIRE/ dfErzERl
A/ ek ER Proportion of nominal
Place of Nominal value of value of issued
AR incorporation/ issued share capital/ share capitallregistered TTER
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
—2-f C3-Ef
2011 2010
EXHE(RE)ERLT £ LER- 280 100% 100%  REER
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Investment holding
EMhE(DE)ERAR hEIA BAER- 100% 0%  BEREEEH
-BENELE 4,340,000%7C
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Shanghai) Mainland China Capital contribution - Manufacture of and trading in
Company Limited - wholly owned USD4,340,000 coatings
foreign enterprise
Yip's Pacific ABRIES LER- 100% 60%  REZR
36,251, 00087
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - Investment holding

HK$36,251,000

BIAFEERERLT hEIRE ERER- (R W)  HEREERRR
(METES) -RBRELE 3,800,000%7

Zhanjiang Best Lubricant Mainland China Capital contribution - note (¢) note(c  Manufacture of and
Blending Limited (“ZBLB") - equity joint venture USD3,800,000 trading in lubricants

Bt = - Notes:

(a)  ERZA2AFHEHIBauhinia Paints (Thailand) (@) Asthe Company controls the composition and appointment of the board
Manufacturing LimitedEE =& 2 A K & of directors of Bauhinia Paints (Thailand) Manufacturing Limited, this
- WZARRBERADRZMBE AR ° company is treated as a subsidiary of the Company.

(b) FHAEEFEZELTRMDEERERR (b)  The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no right
ERAMZARRRAGEZESRER to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
FAZLAARRAEREELRE - & meeting of the company. On a winding-up, the holders of the deferred
BREE MEERFAANAER)E shares are entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return
ErHERERZEROLIGZERARH of capital paid up on the non-voting deferred shares but only when
100,000,000,00058 7t @ ABEZERDIFE A holders of ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have received in full
FEERZARRNGEETEERENER the return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a total sum of
SRR ZER HK$100,000,000,000.

(0 AEEREIBEEERAIT(EISD () ZBLBis owned legally as to 80% by the Group and 20% by Zhanjiang Port
ARG EER R TELEZ80%K20% ° M Group Company Limited (“Zhanjiang Port”). Since the only contribution
MR TIEzE—HERBEITESREZ— by Zhanjiang Port is a piece of land where ZBLB locates (which is also
Wit (R REME LIRS HEASE — AR the only distribution it entitles upon dissolution of ZBLB) and it is only
BEZDK)  RIEEEESEESZERE entitled to receive a fixed rate of dividend of approximately HK$1.19
FHE#1,190,00058 7T (18 B &L EEFT1E million (deemed lease payment for the piece of land where ZBLB locates)
iz T S) SELESWRARDFAZ per annum, ZBLB is deemed to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
2EWBAR > MEIBEAZLHIER Company and the land injected by Zhanjiang Port does not form part of
BRAEEEEZ—I17 ° the assets of the Group.
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37.
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BRYip’ s Chemical (BVI) Limitedfd & 2 &)
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36.

37.

Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Except for Yip's Chemical (BVI) Limited which is held directly by
the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held. Except for
the investment holding companies which have no specific place
of operation, all the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/registration.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets or
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31
December 2011 or at any time during the year.

Information about the Statement of
Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of reporting period includes:

—E——F —E-EF

2011 2010

FExT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

NHBAT 2R LEHIRE  Unlisted investment in subsidiaries 288,581 262,581
R — R BN RFRE Amount due from a subsidiary 787,623 776,350
R1TEEER Bank balances 1,061 768
HiREEE Other current assets 145 181
BEE Total assets 1,077,410 1,039,880
EABAREMIEERE  Accrued charges and other financial liabilities 14,632 1,292
FEE Net assets 1,062,778 1,038,588
[ Share capital 55,515 55,304
1] Reserves 1,007,263 983,284
BrEm Total equity 1,062,778 1,038,588
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